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HTL LIMITED
Registered Office: GST Road, Guindy, Chennai - 600 032

CIN: U93090TNl 960PLC004355
Email Id: coo@htllimited.com; Website: www.htllimited.com

Phone: 044-22501020

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Sixty Fourth Annual Ceneral Meeting of HTL Limited
will be held on Friday, the 8th August, 2025 at 12.30 P.M. at the Registered Office of
the Company at GST Road, Guindy, Chennai - 600 032 and thru' Video Conferencing
over MS Teams (link will be provided to the Members on receipt of their request) to
transact the following business:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

I Adoption of Financial Statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company
for the year ended 3l't March, 2025 together with the Reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended 3l't March, 2025 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon be and are hereby received and adopted."

Appointment of Director in place of the retiring Director

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Mahendra Nahata (holding DIN- 00052898)
who retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers
himself for re-appointment.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Shri Mahendra Nahata (holding DIN- 00052898) who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby
re-appointed as Director of the Company who shall be liable to retire by rotation
under Section 152 of the Companies Act,2013;'

Appointment of Director in place of the retiring Director

To appoint a Director in place of Shri K. C. Jani (holding DIN- 02535299) who
retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself
for re-appointment.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Shri K. C. Jani (holding DIN- 02535299) who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby

)
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re-appointed as Director of the Company who shall be liable to retire by rotation
under Section 152 of the Companies Act,ZOl3.,,

Re-Appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company for a second term of
five years

To re-appoint M/s. oswal Sunil & co, chartered Accountants (Firm Regn.
No. 016520N), chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the company, for a
second term of five years and in this regard pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, Section 142 and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the companies Act, z0l3 read with the
companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, z0l4 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), M/s. Oswil
Sunil & co., chartered Accountants (Firm Regn. No.016520N) be and are hereby
re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a second term of five years
to hold office from the conclusion of 64th Annual General Meeting tili the
conclusion of 69th Annual General Meeting on such remuneration plus iaxes and
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses as may be incurred by them in connection
with audit of accounts of the company, as may be mutually agreed upon between
the Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors.',

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

Re-appointment and payment of remuneration of shri G. s. Naidu, chief
operating officer as 'Manager' of the company under the companies Act,
2013.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as a Special Resolution:

"REsoLvED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 196, lg7, l9g,
Schedule v and other applicable provisions, if any, of the companies Act,20l3
("the Act") (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force) and such other approvals as maybe necessary, consent of the
company be and is hereby accorded for the re-appointment of Shri G. S. Naidu,
chief operating officer as the Manager of the company for a period of one year
w.e.f.25.6.2024 as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
of the Company and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in their
meeting held on 30.1.2025 at a remuneration of Rs. 98,65,2oll- with t-he tlrms and
conditions set out in the explanatory statement annexed to this Notice convening
this meeting including remuneration to be paid in the event of loss or inadequacy o?
profits in any financial year during the period of his tenure.,'

5.
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6. Ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors.

To consider and ratit/ the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the

following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Acq 2013 read with the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 [including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force], and as recommended by the Audit
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors in their Meeting held on 22nd

July,2024 the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration amounting to Rs. 75,0001-
(Rupees Seventy Five Thousand only) plus applicable taxes & reimbursement of
out-of-pocket expenses to be incurred for outstation trip in connection with this
Audit, payable to M/s STARP & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration
No. 004143), Chennai, who are appointed as the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit
of cost records made and maintained by the company for the products viz., Aramid
Reinforced Plastic (ARP) Rods, Fibre Reinforced Plastic (FRP) Rods, HDPE, Wire
Harness and any other products coming under the purview of Cost Audit for the
financial year commencing on 0 I't April, 2024 and ending on 3 I't March, 2025 .

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and

is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and to take all such steps

as may be necessary, proper, or expedient to give effect to this resolution."

Appointment of Smt. Bela Banerjee (DIN: 07047271), as an Independent
Director of the Company for first term.

To consider and approve the appointment of Smt. Bela Banerjee (DIN: 07047271)
as an Independent Director of the Company for the first term of 5 consecutive years.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the

following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and 160

read with Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,2013
(the "Act") and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force) and on the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, Smt. Bela Banerjee (DIN: 07047271), who was

appointed as an Additional Director (lndependent) not liable to retire by rotation, by
the Board of Directors, pursuant to Section 161(l) of the Act and who has

submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria for independence as provided
under Section 149 (6) and in respect whom, the Company has received a notice in
writing under Section 160 (l) of the Act, fiom a member, signifying their intention
to propose Smt. Bela Banerjee's candidature for the office of Director, be and is
hereby appointed as an lndependent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by
rotation, to hold office for one terrn of 5 consecutive years commencing from
I 0.06.2025 to 09.06.203 0.
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*RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the company be and
is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and taks all such
steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution and
for matters connected therewith, or incidental thereto,r,

Registered Office:
GST Road, Guindy
Chennai - 600 032

Place: Chennai
Date:3.7.2025

By Order of the Board
For HTL Limited

(S. Narayanan)
Company Secretary

Membership No. ACS 5772

,b ."Bl- €lnz
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Notes:

1. Proxy

2.

(i) Article 66 of the Arlicles of Association of the Company provides that a

member entitled to attend and vote at a meeting may appoint another person

(whether a member or not) as his proxy to attend a meeting and vote on a poll.
No member shall appoint more than one proxy to attend on the same occasion.

A proxy shall not be entitled to speak at a meeting or to vote except on a poll.
The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing and be signed by the

appointer or his attorney duly authorised in writing or if the appointer is a body
corporate, be under its seal or be signed by an officer or an attomey duly
authorised by it.

(ii) Article 67 of the Articles of Association of the Company provides that the

instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if
any) under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that power or
authority shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less

than forty eight hours before the time for holding the meeting or adjoumed
meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote, or in the

case of apoll not less than 24 hours before the time appointed fortaking of the

poll and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AT TIIE
FORTHCOiVTNG ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING PTTRSUANT TO
SECRETARIAL STAT{DARDS ON GENERAL MEETINGS ISSUBD BY
THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA (ICSI) AS ON
THE DATE OF'NOTICE.

Name of the
Director

Shri Mahendra Nahata Shri K. C. Jani Smt. Bela Banerjee

DIN 00052898 02535299 0'1047271

Date of Birth (Age in
Years)

19.05.1959 (66 years) 18.01.1954 (71 years) 07.10.1950 (74years)

Date offirst
Appointment

16.10.2001 29.10.2015 10.06.2025

Experience/Expertise
in Specific
Functional Areas

He has a business

experience of more than
three decades. He is the
Promoter and Managing
Director of the Holding
Company viz., Himachal
Futuristic Communications
Ltd. He is the visionary
behind the Company's
technology partnership,
business development and
marketing initiatives.

He retired as an Executive
Director in IDBI Bank. He
has worked on all the

functions of management
mainly Operations, Finance
and HR, He is a visiting
taculty at some of the top-
notch lndian B-Schools and
good counselor and a

motivator. His expertise
would certainly prove to be
an asset to the Company.

She has more than 37 years of
experience in the Covemment
of India, having served in
difl-erent positions in Ministry
of Railways, zonal railways as

well as in the Ministry of HRD

- Depanment ol Education.
Atler superannuating tiom
Indian Railways in September,
2010 as a Financial Advisor and

Chief Accounts Officer N.
Railway, she joined as a

Member Technical in the
Railway Claims Tribunal and
settled various claim cases

related to goods and passenger

services of Railways.

As the Executive Director /
Finance (Commercial) in the
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Railway Board she was
responsible for developing
policies to attract investment in
Railways and increase the
number of customers to
enhance revenue and generate
resources for the organization.
Smt. Bela Banerjee has also
served as a Government
Nominee Director on the Board
of Container Corporation of
India and IRCTC. She has rich
experience in both
administration and finance,

She is also a registered member
of the Arbitration Council of
India and has handled various
arbitration cases at different
levels in Railways and PSUs.

Qualification(s) B.Com (Hons.) He is an Engineering
Graduate in Chemical and
has done Post-Graduation in
Business Administration.

She has completed her Master
of Arts (History) from Banaras
Hindu University (BHU), and
she is a Law Graduate from
Delhi University. She has also
completed Bachelor of Arts
(Hons.) from BHU.

Direclorship in other
Companies

HFCL Limited;

Reliance Jio Infocomm
Limited;

HFCL Technologies Private
Limited;

MN Ventures Private
Limited;

Krishiv Ventures Private
Limited;

Pranatharlhi Ventures
Private Limited.

TFS Business Advisors
India Private Limited;

Areion Assets Management
Private Limited;

Bliss View Tourism and
Infrastructure Limited;

Grevek Investments and
Finance Private Limited;

ACAIPL Investment &
Financial Services Private
Limited;

Chiplun FTWZ Private
Limited;

Gujarat-Dwarka Portwest
Limited; and

Pittie Housing Finance
Lim

HFCL Limited;

Adhunik Power & Natural
Resources Limited;
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Chairmanship/

Membership of
Committees (across

all public Cos.)

HTL Limited:
Member of Nomination &
Rem uneration Committee

HFCL Limited:
Chairman of Cotporate
Social Responsibility
Committee

Chairman of Risk
Management Committee

Chairman of Banking
Operations Committee

Chairman of Fund Raising
Committee

Chairman of Allotment
Committee (Warrants)

Member of Environment,
Social and Govemance
Committee

Reliance
Limited:
Member
Committee

Jio Infocomm

of Allotment

HTL Limited:
Chairman of Audit
Committee

Member ol Corporate Social
Responsibi I ity Committee

Chairman of fusk
Management Committee

HFCL Limited:
Member of Audit Committee

Member of Stakeholders'
Relationship Committee

Adhunik Power & Natural
Resources Limited:
Member of Audit Committee

Member of Nomination &
Remuneration Committee

Member of Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee

Shareholding in the
Company

Nil Nit Nil

Relationship with
other Directors and
KMPs of the
Company

Nil Nil Nil

No. of Board
Meetings held /
Attended during the

Jinancial year 2024-
25

6t6 6/6 N.A

Details of
Remuneration

souqht to be paid

Nil Sitting Fee ol Rs.15.000/-
per meeting attended.

Sitting Fee of Rs. 15,000/- per
meeting attended.

Last Remuneration
drawn

Nil Except, sitting fee for
attending meetings of Board
and various Committees,
amounting to Rs. 2,10,000/-
(Rupees Two Lakh and Ten
Thousand only) in aggregate
during FY 24-25, no other
remuneration was paid.

N.A

Terms and
conditions
of re-appointment
and Remuneration

As mentioned in the
Resolutions and Statements.
Shareholders may also refer
Remuneration Policy which
is available on the website
of the Company i.e.
www.htllimited.com

As mentioned in the
Resolutions and Statements.
Shareholders may also refer
Remuneration Poticy which
is available on the website
of the Company i.e.
www.htllimited.com

As mentioned in the Resolutions
and Statements. Shareholders
may also refer Remuneratiolr
Policy which is available on the

website of the Company i.e
www.htllimited.com
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3. Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 of the companies Act,2013

ITEM NO.5

Shri G' S. Naidu is a B.E. (Hons.) in Electrical Engineering from Bhopal University
of Madhya Pradesh around 4 decades of extensive experience in Manufacturing
Business Operations, Green field / Expansion projects. He started his career with
M/s. National Aluminium co. Ltd. in 1985, during project stage having capital
outlay of 2.4 billion USD and later joined M/s. Optel Telecommunication Ltd., the
pioneer company in the field of Optical Fibre, Optical Fibre Cable and Telecom
Equipments.

During his employment with M/s. HFCL at Goa Plant and M/s. Sudarshan Telecom
(a division of M/s. West Coast Paper Mills Ltd.) he spearheaded the entire business
activities of manufacturing of Optical Fibre Cable. He also headed a green field
power cable pro.iect of M/s. General Cable Energy India pvt. Ltd. (a unit of the
General cable corporation, usA) having a capital outlay of 45 Million uSD.

He has been appointed as the chief operating officer of the company w.e.f.
16.6.2015. After joining the services of the company, he established the
manufacturing operations of OFC & OFC Accessories and converted the Net Worth
of the Company from negative to positive by consistent improvement in the
financial performance of the company. Subsequently, the Company's operations
have been expanded to Wire Harness products for Automotive & Industrial Sectors
and Aerospace & Defence Sectors under his able leadership.

Shri G. S. Naidu, chief operating officer of the company has been designated as
the 'Manager' of the company since 25.6.201s in the absence of Managing
Director as per the provisions of the Companies Act, zol3. Since then he has been
re-appointed as the designated 'Manager' in pursuant to Section 2(53) of the
Companies Act, 2013 for a period of one year from time to time. He has been re-
appointed for a further period of one year w.e.f. 25.6.2024 on the existing terms and
conditions, including remuneration with the approval of the Board of Directors on
the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company in their meeting held on 30.1.2025 subject to the approval of Members in
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as per the terms
detailed in the Annexure- L

A copy of the remuneration details of Shri G. S. Naidu is enclosed as Annexure- I.
The same may be treated as the abstract of the terms of the appointment of the
Manager.

The information required under Schedule V of the companies Act, 2013 is
furnished in the Annexure- II which is forming part of this Explanatory Statement.

The details of Manager proposed to be re-appointed pursuant to Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India are furnished in
Annexure- III, which is forming part of this Explanatory statement.

Shri G. S' Naidu along with his relatives, is deemed to be interested in the
Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the accompanying Notice with regard to his re-
appointment.



q

Save and except the above, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company and their relatives, is in any way concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the accompanying Notice.

The Board recommends the Special resolution set forth in Item no. 5 of the Notice
for the approval of members.

ITEM NO. 6

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the Company is
required to appoint a Cost Accountant to audit the cost records for applicable
products being manufactured by the Company. Based on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee, the Board at its meeting held on July 22, 2024, approved the
appointment of IWs STARP & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration
No.004143) as the Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct audit of cost records
maintained by the Company, pertaining to the for the products viz., Aramid
Reinforced Plastic (ARP) Rods, Fibre Reinforced Plastic (FRP) Rods, HDPE, Wire
Harness and any other products coming under the purview of Cost Audit for the
financial year commencing on 01't April, 2024 and ending on 3 I't March, 2025, at a
remuneration of Rs. 75,0001- (Rupees Seventy Five Thousand Only) plus applicable
taxes & reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses to be incurred for outstation trip
in connection with this Audit.

ln accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with Rule 14 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time,
the remuneration payable to Cost Auditors for the financial year 2024-25 as

recommended by the Audit Committee and subsequently approved by the Board of
Directors has to be ratified by the Members of the Company by way of an Ordinary
Resolution.

Save and except the above, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company and their relatives, is in any way concemed or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the accompanying Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary resolution set forth in Item No. 6 of the
Notice for the approval of members.

ITEM NO. 7

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152, 160 and 161(l) and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") and rules made
thereunder and the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company, the
Board of Directors of the Company have appointed Smt. Bela Banerjee
(DIN: 07047271) as an Additional Director in the category of Independent Director
on 10.6.2025 as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on
9.6.2025, subject to approval of the Shareholders of the Company.

The Company has received nomination cum notice under Section 160 of the
Companies Act, 2013 from HFCL Limited, the Holding Company, proposing
candidature of Smt. Bela Banerjee to be appointed as an Independent Director of
the Company. A copy of the same is annexed for information of the Shareholders as

Annexure- IV.
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Smt. Bela Banerjee has completed her Master of Arts (History) from Banaras Hindu
University (BHU), and she is a Law Graduate from Delhi University. She has also
completed Bachelor of Arts (Hons.) from BHU. She has more than 37 years of
experience in the Government of India, having served in different positions in
Ministry of Railways, zonal railways as well as in the Ministry of HRD -
Department of Education. After superannuating from Indian Railways in
September, 2010 as a Financial Advisor and Chief Accounts Officer N. Railway,
she joined as a Member Technical in the Railway Claims Tribunal and settled
various claim cases related to goods and passenger services of Railways.

As the Executive Director / Finance (Commercial) in the Railway Board she was
responsible for developing policies to attract investment in Railways and increase
the number of customers to enhance revenue and generate resources for the
organization. Smt. Bela Banerjee has also served as a Government Nominee
Director on the Board of Container Corporation of India and IRCTC. She has rich
experience in both administration and finance.

She is also a registered member of the Arbitration Council of India and has handled
various arbitration cases at different levels in Railways and PSUs.

Smt, Bela Banerjee has also registered her name in the databank for Independent
Directors maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (llCA), Manesar
(notified under Section I50(l) of the Companies Act,2013 as the Institute for the
creation and maintenance databank of Independent Directors).

The Company has received a declaration from Smt. Bela Banerjee to the effect that
she meets the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act
and is independent of Management. Srnt. Bela Banerjee is not disqualified from
being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given her
consent to act as Director of the Company.

Smt. Bela Banerjee is not debarred from holding the office of Director pursuant to
any order passed by any authority.

Smt. Bela Banerjee does not hold any equity shares in the Company.

In the opinion of the Board of the Company, Smt. Bela Banerjee fulfils the
conditions specified in the Act and rules made thereunder for her appointment as an
Independent Director of the company and she is independent of management.

The brief profile of Smt. Bela Banerjee to be appointed as an Independent Director
of the Company is given under the heading "Details of Directors seeking re-
appointment and Director to be appointed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting pursuant to Secretarial Standards on General Meeting issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India as on the date of the Notice" is furnished
elsewhere in the Notice. This Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under
SS-2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

It is proposed to appoint Smt. Bela Banerjee as a Non- Executive Independent
Director for one term of 5 (Five) consecutive years w.e.f. June I o, zoz5 to June 9,
2030 pursuant to Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder. She will not be liable to retire by rotation.
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Smt. Bela Banerjee along with her relative, is deemed to be interested in the

Resolution set out at ltem No. 7 of the accompanying Notice with regard to her

appointment.

Save and except the above, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company and their relatives, is in any way concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the resolution set out at ltem No. 7 of the accompanying Notice.

The Board is of the view that the association of Smt. Bela Banerjee with her vast
knowledge and varied experience will be of immense benefit to the Company, and

it is desirable to avail her services as an Independent Director.

The Board recommends the appointment of Smt. Bela Banerjee as an Independent
Director as set out in Item No. 7 for approval by the Members of the Company, by
way of an Ordinary Resolution.

Registered Office:
GST Road, Guindy
Chennai - 600 032

Place: Chennai
Date:3.7.2025

By Order of the Board
For HTL Limited

I flS\-'4-
(S. Narayanan)

Company Secretary
Membership No. ACS 5772
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Annexure - I
Remuneration

Name: Gilkara Shrinivas Naidu

Designation: Chief Operating Officer & Designated .Manager'

ve

*The LTI Component is payable based on annual evaluation of business performance of
the Company.

,k

Remuneration

Salary Components INR
Monthly:
Basic Salary 2,77,356
HRA @ 50% of Basic 1,66,414
Special Allowance 63,837
Driver Charges 27,000
Fuel Reimbursement 53,343
Monthly Gross Salary 5,87,950
Annual Gross Sala

'T 
(A) 70,55,400

Annual Benefits
LT48.333% 2,77,345
Company Contribution to PF lZYo 3,99,393
Gratuiry 4.808% 1,60,023
Total Annual Benefits (B) 8,36,761
Annual Fixed CTC (A +
Performance Linked Incentive (PI- I 25% (c)

7g,g2,16l
19,73,040

Total CTC annum (A+B+C) 98,65,201

LTI Payable for FY 2024-25 34,52,9211-
LTI Payable for FY 2025-26 39,46,0901-
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Annexure- III
INFORMATION OF MANAGER PROPOSED TO BE RE.APPOINTED IN
PIIRSUANT TO SECRETARIAL STANDAR.DS ON GENERAL MEETINGS ISSUED
BY THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF II\DIA (ICSI) AS ON THE
DATE OF NOTICE.

The above statement may be treated as part of Statement annexed under Section 102 of the
companies Act,20l3 for Item No. 5 of the Notice of AGM (l/2025).

Name the Shri G. S. Naidu
PAN ABRPN4626P
Date Birth tn 19.07 .1963 (61 years)

Date intment 25.06.20t5
Exp er ie nc e / Exp er t i s e in Spe c ifi c
Functional Areas

He is having a rich experience of about four
decades in manufacturing operations, including
Optical Fibre Cables and also is having specialized
in manufacturing of OpticalFibre Cables.

After joining the services of the Company, he
established the manufacturing operations of OFC &
OFC Accessories and converted the Net Worth of
the Company from negative to positive by
consistent improvement in the financial
performance of the Company. Subsequently, the
Company's operations have been expanded to Wire
Harness products for Automotive & Industrial
Sectors and Aerospace & Defence Sectors under
his able

Qualification(s) B.E. Hons.

Directorship in other Companies Nimpaa Telecommunications Private Limited
(Nominated by the Holding Company viz., HFCL
Lim

C hairmanship/ Me mbership of
Committees (across all public Cos.)

HTL Ltd:
Risk Management Committee- Member

Sharehol, in the NiI
Relationship with other Directors
and KMPs the

Nil

No. of Board Meetings held /
Attended during the financial year
2024-25

6t6

Delails of Remuneration sought to be
paid

Rs.98,65,201/-

Lasl Remunerat ion drlw n Rs.98,65,201/-
Terms and conditions of
re -appo intment and Remunerat ion

As mentioned in the Resolutions and Statements.
Shareholders may also refer Remunerat
which is available on the website of the

ion Policy
Company

l.e. lim
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HFCL GROUP

Annexure- IV

HFCL Limited
8, Commercial Complex, Masjid Moth, GrEater Kailash - ll,
New Delhi - 110{148, lndia
Tel z l+€1 111 3520 9400, 3520 9500 Fax : (+91 11) 3520 9525
VYeb : unaruy.hfcl.com

Email :
secretarial@hfcl.com

May L6,2025

To,

HTLLimited
CIN: U9309OTN1960PLC004355

Registered Office: G.S.T. Road, Guindy.

Chennai - 600032,Tamil Nadu

RE: DP ID: IN300450 / Client ID: 1O416OOO maintained wi$ IDBI Bank Limited.

SubjecE - Lefter of Nomination-cum-Itlodce under Section 16O of the Companies Act,
2013 for proposing candidature of Mrs. Bela Baneriee (DIN: O7O472711, as
Director on the Board of HTL Limited (HTl,)

Dear Sir(s),

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 150 of the Companies Act,2013 (Act) and in terms of
the Articles of Association of HTL and Regulation 2a(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board
of lndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Require.rnents) Regulations, 2015 (as amended
or re-enacted from time to time), We HFCL Limited" a member and holding company of HTL,
holding 11,10,000 equityshares of face value of Rs.1OO/- each, constituting 74026 of the fully
paid-up equity share capital of HTL, hereby nominate Mrl Bela Banerjee (DIN:0704727L),
as a Director on the Board of HTL and give notice to HTL under Section 160 of the Act, in our
capacity of a member of HTl. proposing the candidature of Mrs. Bela Baneriee (DIN:
07047271), for her appointment as a Director of HTl. at the forthcoming Annual Generd
Meeting of HTL or any adjournment thereof.

We also enclose herewith a certified true copy of the resolution passed by the Board of
Directors of HFCL Limited through circulation on May L5,2O25, in this regard.

Thankingyou.

Yours Sincerely.-.*
For HFCL II

It
(Manoi Baid)
President &
Membership No.: - FCS-S834

Encl.: A/a

Regd. ffice E Works : 8, Electronics Complex, Charnbaghat, Solan. 173 213 (H.P.) Tel. : {01792) 230644, 230645, 230647, Fax : (01792) 231902

Corporate ldentity Number : L642lXlHP1987PLC(l07466
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HFCL

HFCL Limited
8, Commerclal Gomplex, Masjld Moth, Greater l(ailash - !1,
New Delhl - 110048,lndia
Tel : (+91 11) 3520 9400,3520 9500 Far : (+91 11) 35ZO 9525Web : www.hfcl.com
Email : secrgtarial@hfpl.co{n

GROUP

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED THROUGH CIRCUIITTION BY THE
BOARD OFDIRECTORSOF HFCI LIMTTED ON MAY 1s,zo25

APPOINTMENT OF NOMINEE DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY ON THE BOARD OF HTLLIMITED, A SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

-RES0wED UNANIMoUSIYTHAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 160 of the Companies
Acq 2013 ('Acr) and in terms of the Articles of Association of HTL Limited, a material subsidiary
of the Company ("INTL") and Regulation 24(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
fListing obligatiom and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended or re.enacted
from time to time), the company hereby nominates Ms Bela Baneriee @IN: 07047271), as a
Director (lndependent) on the Board of HTL and give notice to HTL under Section 160 of the Act,
in the capacityof a member of HTL, proposing candidature of Ms. Bela Baneriee (DIN: 0704727L)
for her appointnent as an tndependent Director of HTL, with authority and powers, to further
change the nomination and/or withdraw the nomination of Ms. Bela Banedee fur holding the
ofhce of Directoron the Board of HTL

RES0LVED FURTHER TI{AT the letter of nomination in terms of the Articles of Association of[trL and the notice of candidature under Section 160 of the Act, be issued by ttre Company and
Mr' Manoj Baid, President & company secretary of the company. be and is hereby authorized to
sig]r the said noticq documents. papers and to do all necessary things, acB in this regard on behalf
ofthe Company.

RES0LVED FI'RTHER THAT a certified true copy of this resoluuon may be given to HTL Limited
and/or any other Company/ authority/ entity under the signatures of any of the Directors or
Company Secretaryof the Company..,

Certified true copy
FoTHFCL timited

/,
t-'

(Manoj Baid)
President & Company Secretary
Membership No.: - FCS-S834

Regd. Office & Worts : 8, Electronics Complex, 173 213 (H.P.) Tel. : {01792) 230644,230645, 230647, FarChambaghat, Solan-
Corporate ldentity Number : 104200HPi987pLC007466

(01792) 231902
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HTL LTD.

Registered Office: G.S.T. Road, Guindy, Chennai - 600 032

DIRECTORS' REPORT

To the Members,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 64th Annual Report and Audited Accounts

for the financial year ended 3l't March 2025.

FINA]\CIAL RESULTS (Rs. in Lakhs)

DIVIDEND

After taking into consideration the financial prospects of the Company during the year

under review, the Board of Directors could not recommend payment of dividend for the

yeat.

RESERVES

During the period under review, the Company has incurred a net loss of Rs. 1,511'96

lakhs and resulted in the reduction in Reserves. There were no other transfers to the

Reserves for the year under review.

CHAT\GES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There is no change in the capital structure of the Company during the year under review

PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24

Revenue from Operations 57,459.53 84,428.55

Other Income 486.74 432.3r

Total Income 57,946.27 84,860.86

Profit / (Loss) Before Depreciation, Finance Charges and

Taxation
3,647.62 9,766.38

Less: Depreciation & Amortization of Expenses 2,030.87 2,272.19

Finance Charges 3,569.85 3,273.20

Taxation (441.14) 1,364.13

Net Profit / (Loss) for the year (1,511.96) 2,856.86

Other Comprehensive Income / Expenditure Re-measurement

ofdefined benefit plans
I l.0l (e.44)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (1,500.95) 2,847.42

Surplus / (DeficiQ Brought Forward from Previous Year 15,684.25 12,836.83

Surplus / (Deficit) Carried to the Balance Sheet 14,183.30 15,684.25
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The Cornpany has achieved a Turnover of Rs. 57,45g.53lakhs during the financial year
2024-25 and the value of sales of different products & services provided during the year
under review with comparative figures of the previous year are:-

(Rs. in Lakhs)

The slump in the market for the Company's main productviz, Optical Fiber Cable is
continued both domestically & abroad since the second half of FY ZOZ3-24 and because
of this fact not only your Company but also all the Manufacturing Companies in the
similar industries in India were adversely affected in the business operations during the
year under review. Your Company has taken all required steps in order to increase its
turnover in its divisions viz., Passive Connectivity Solutions (pCS) and Electrical Wiring
Interconnection Solutions (EWIS) so that the financial performance can be improved.

OUTLOOK

Optical Fiber Cables (OFC)

The implementation of 5G Network is expected to pick up, the placing of order for the
BharatNet Phase- III project and the establishment of Data Centers are expected to
increase the demand for Optical Fiber Cable in the domestic market during the next
FY 2025-26.

In the export market, high-speed broadband initiatives across the world such as project
Gigabit in the UK, the BMVI Nationwide Gigabit Plan in Germany, PFTHD in France,
Symmetric Gigabit in Austria, BEAD Program in the USA, alongside other similar digital
connectivity projects across Africa offer significant prospects for the Manufacturers of
OFC & OFC Accessories.

There is also a growing focus on high-fibre count Intermittently Bonded Ribbon (IBR)
cables, cable assemblies, specifically designed for both inter-data center connectivity and
within-data center applications. While Indian data centers currently utilize low-fiber
cables, there's a growing expectation and active marketing of high-fiber density cables,
especially with the emergence of new hyperscale data centers. This shift is driven by the
need for higher data capacity and efficient space utilization in the face of increased
demand from applications like AI and 5G.

Description 2024-25 2023-24
Sale of Products OFC, FRP, ARP, IGFR, OFC
Accessories, Wire
Defense Sectors and

Harness Products for Aerospace &
for Automotive & Industrial Sectors

57,081.49 83,669.76

Service / Job Work Char 179.74 455.77
Other I Revenues 198.3 I 303.02
TOTAL 57,459.53 84,429.55
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Cable Reinforcement Solutions (CRS)

The market for cable reinforcement solutions, including Fiber Reinforced Plastic (FRP),

Aramid Reinforced Plastic (ARP), and Impregnated Glass Fiber Reinforcement (IGFR),

has significant potential driven by the growing telecom industry, increasing demand for

high-speed broadband connectivity, and the adoption of 5G networks. These solutions are

crucial for providing strength and protection to optical fiber cables, especially in

applications like FTTH (Fiber-to-the-Home) and other last-mile connectivity deployments

like BharatNet Phase-lll project.

Electrical Wiring Interconnect Solutions (EWIS)

The Indian defence industry is on a growth path, driven by a combination of strategic

initiatives and pressing security needs. The primary drivers are the rising geopolitical

tensions, and a comprehensive modernisation program coupled with the resolve to

become a self-reliant in defence manufacturing. India's strategic position in South Asia,

coupled with ongoing regional conflicts and border tensions have doubled down on the

need for a robust and responsive defence stance. ,

System integration is emerging as a key differentiator in the defence manufacturing

space, panicularly in the wiring harness and EWIS segment. The demand is evolving

from mere component supply to delivering fully integrated wire harness solutions that

include design validation, assembly, and automated testing. Companies equipped with

capabilities such as Automatic Harness Test Equipment (ATE) and experience in

integrating harnesses with avionics, power, and communication systems are better

positioned to secure long-term contracts. OEMs and defence PSUs are increasingly

assessing vendors not just on cost, but on their ability to ensure quality, traceability, and

readiness for end-to-end system integration. Your Company has made strategic

partnerships with key Defence PSUs and other OEMs, which will result in substantial

growth in the turnover of the Company in the near future.

It is in consideration of these facts and opportunity trends that your Company's business

outlook stands promising and positive over a longer period of foreseeable future'

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

During the year under review, the Optical Fiber Cables (OFC) Division of your

Company:-

l. Developed product samples of 2FllZF Unitube Toneable Drop & 12F Unitube

Dielectric Oval Drop Cable. These drop cables are developed exclusively for North

American Market has better tensile properties than conventional cables of this kind.

2. Developed Micro Distribution Cable samples. These large-capacity trunk cables are

commonly deployed to facilitate communication between primary distribution hubs,

like a central office or data center to distant locations or end-user devices.

3. Designed the Tactical cables for military communications and are suitable for rapid

deployment in extreme environments. Associated with them, the Fiber-Optic
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Multiplexer is a cost-effective solution for transporling 16 El communication links
(for voice & data), high-speed data, or Ethemet over tactical cables.

The Cable Reinforcement Solutions Division of the Company has entered into a long
term supply contract with a nrajor European OFC Raw Material Supplier for FRp Rods in
the USA and Europe Regions. This arrangement resulted in securing multiple orders and
is expected to bring in a revenue ofabout Rs.400 crores over the next 5 years.

Your Company in its Passive Connectivity Solutions (PCS) Division developed product
samples of lF Pre-terminated Toneable Round Drop Cable for USA. These are designed
to meet the stringent performallce requirements of FTTH (Fiber to the Home)
applications.

Your Company participated in several Events & Exhibitions and established its
relationship with the reputed Companies for its wire harness products both for Aerospace
and Automotive Sectors. The Company is expected to increase its volume of business
under its Electrical Wiring Interconnection Solutions (EWIS) Division in the ensuing
years.

Your Company consolidated its Aerospace & Defence facilities at Hosur plant as an
optimization measure by transfer from Guindy Plant during the year under review.

Your Company leased out a portion of Factory Premises at Hosur at the prevailing market
rates to the Holding Company viz., HFCL Limited w.e.f. L1O.Z0Z4 for its manufacturing
of defence products. Further, a Memorandum of Understanding has been executed with
them for sharing of common facilities at Hosur at agreed contribution. These
arrangements have generated additional revenue to the Company.

NIIMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD HELD DURING THE FINANCIAL
YEAR TJNDER REVIEW

There were six meetings held during the Financial Year 2024-25 i.e., on 30.04.2024,
18.06.2024, 22.07.2024, 23.09.2024, t9.to.2oz4 and 30.01 .zoz5. The intervening gap
between two meetings of the Board is within the stipulated time prescribed in the
Companies Act, 2013.

ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return of the Company as on 3lst March, 2024 in prescribed e-form MGT-7
in accordance with Section 92(3) of the Act, read with Section l3a(3)(a) of the Act, is
available on the website of the Company and may be accessed at the web-link:
https :/4rtll imited.com/uploadimases/Fy2 0?3 -24.pd f
Further, the Annual Retum i.e. e-form MGT-7 for the FY Z0Z4-25 shall be filed by the
Company with the Registrar of Companies, Tamil Nadu within the stipulated period and
the same can also be accessed thereafter on the company's website.
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DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION

DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLENIENT AND THE VALUATION

DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL

INSTITUTIONS

The Rule 8 (5) of Accounts Rules,2Ol4 w.r.t. the details of difference between amount of

the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking

loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions is not applicable to the Company during the

year under review.

LOAI\S, GUARANTEES AI\D INVESTMENTS

The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Companies

Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014

outstanding as at 3lst March, 2025 are as follows:

Particulars Amount in Rs.

Loans given NIL
Guarantees provided NIL
lnvestments made 420.45

HOLDING COMPAN"Y

HFCL Limited is the Holding Company and is having 74o/o equity shares in the Company.

The Holding Company is a Listed Public Limited Company and its CIN is

L64200HP1987PLC007466 and their Registered Office is at 8, Electronics Complex,

Chambaghat, Solan - 173 213 (Himachal Pradesh).

PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

In pursuant to Rule 8 (l) of Accounts Rules 2014, the highlights on performance of
Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are not applicable to the Company.

COMPANY'S POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company identifies and

ascertains the integrity, qualifications, expertise and experience of the person for

appointment as Director, Manager, Key Management Personnel (KMP) or a Senior

Management Personnel and recommend to the Board his / her appointment. A person

should possess adequate qualifications, expertise and experience for the position he / she

is considered for appointment in the Company'

As per the policy followed by the Company, the non-executive directors are paid

remuneration in the form of sitting fee for attending Board and Committee meetings as

fixed by the Board of Directors from time to time, subject to the statutory provisions. The

Remuneration Policy of the Company may be accessed at the web-link:

https://trtllimited.com/uploadimages/O60422l52l33RemunerationPoliclv'pdf

a
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Presently the sitting fees is Rs.15,000/- per Board / committee meeting.

The NRC considers pay and employment conditions in the industry, merit and seniority of
the person and the paying capacity of the Company for the appointment and remuneration
of Manager and other Key Management Personnel viz., Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary.

The NRC fixes the remuneration package of Manager, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary after taking into consideration the level and cornposition of
remuneration to be reasonable and suftlcient to attract, retain and motivate the person to
ensure the quality required to run the Company successfully. The remuneration comprises
of salary, perquisites, allowances aparl from the retirement benefits like provident Fund,
Superannuation, Gratuity, etc, as per the Rules of the Company. Further, the Manager is
entitled to customary non-monetary benefits such as company car, furnished
accommodation, health care benefits, Ieave travel. communication facilities, etc. The
terms of the appointment also provide for severance payment.

DIRECTORS

As on 3 I st March, 2025, the company had 7 (seven) Directors on the Board.

Re-Appointments / Appointmen ts

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, Shri Mahendra Nahata
(DIN: 00052898), Director (Non- Executive) and Shri K. c. Jani (DIN: ozs352gg)
Director (Non-Executive) are liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing 64th Annual
General Meeting of the Company and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

The brief resume and other related information of them are being given in the Notice
convening the 64th AGM of your Company.

Your Directors recommend their re-appointment as Non-Executive Director of your
Company.

Shri Mehul R. Joshi (DIN: 10598673) has been appointed as a Nominee Director of the
Company by Government of India w.e.f. April 22,2024.

Cessation

Shri B. K. Nath (DIN: 1011086g) ceased to be a Director w.e.f. April 16,2024
consequent upon withdrawal of nomination by Government of India vide their letter
Ref. No. 5-5/2021-PSA dated April 16,2024.

Declaration by the Company

The Company has issued confirmation to its Directors, confirming that it has not made
any default under Section 164(2) of the Act, as on 3l.r March, 2025.
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Declaration by Independent Director

The Company has received declaration from the Independent Director confirming that she

Jpeets the criteria of independence as prescribed under the provisions of the Act, read

with the Schedules and Rules issued thereunder (including any statutory modification(s)

or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and that they are independent of
management.

AT'DIT COMIVIITTEE

In pursuant to Section 177(8) with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and

its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Company has an Audit Committee with four Members

viz., Dr. R. M. Kastia, Chairman, Shri K. C. Jani, Member, Dr. Tamali Sengupta,

Member and Shri Mehul R. Joshi, Member.

Shri B. K. Nath Ceased to be a Member in the Committee consequent upon cessation of
his directorship on withdrawal of nomination from the Board of the Company by

Government of India w.e.f. April 16,2024.

Shri Mehul R. Joshi inducted as a Member of the Committee w.e.f. April 30,2024.

There were seven meetings held during the Financial Year 2024'25 i.e., on 30.04.2024,

19.06.2024,22.07.2024,23.09.2024,19.10.2024, 09.01 .2025 and 30.01'2025.

NOMINATION AI\D REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In pursuant to Section 178 with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its

Powers) Rules,20l4, the Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Committee with

four Members viz., Shri R. M. Kastia, Chairman, Shri Mahendra Nahata, Member,

Dr. Tamali Sengupta, Member and Shri Mehul R. Joshi, Member.

Shri B. K. Nath Ceased to be a Member in the Committee consequent upon cessation of
his directorship on withdrawal of nomination from the Board of the Company by

Government of India w.e.f. April 16,2024.

Shri Mehul R. Joshi inducted as a Member of the Committee w.e.f. June 18,2024.

There was one meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee held during the

Financial Year 2024-25 i.e., on 30.01 .2025.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RI,SPONSIBILITY COMI{ITTEE

The Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and also its policy

of Corporate Social Responsibility pursuant to the requirements under the Companies

Act,20l3.

The Members of the CSR Commitee are Dr. R. M. Kastia, Chairman, Shri K. C. Jani,

Member, Dr. Tamali Sengupta, Member and Shri Pankaj Garg, Member.
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Shri B. K. Nath Ceased to be a Member in the Committee consequent upon cessation of
his directorship on withdrawal of nomination from the Board of the Company by
Government of India w.e.f. April 16,2024.

Shri Pankaj Garg inducted as a Member of the committee w.e.f. July 22,2024.

There was one meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee held on
07.03.2025 during the Financial Year 2024-25.

REGISTRAR AI\D SHARE TRANSFER AGENT (RTA)

M/s' KFin Technologies Limited (formerly KFin Technologies Private Limited), having
its office at Selenium, Tower B, plot No. 3l & 32, Gachibowli, Nanakramguda,
Hyderabad-500 032 are the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Company has entered into transactions with related
pafty viz., HFCt, Limited, the t{olding company and its Associate company
viz., Nirnpaa Telecommunications Private Limited and Other Related Company viz.,
Exicorn Tele-Systems Limited & Exicom Energy Systerns Private Limited, and Wholly
owned Subsidiaries of the Holding cornpany viz., HFCL Inc., HFCL B.v. & HFCL
Technologies Private Limited and step-down Subsidiary of the Holding Company viz.,
HFCL Canada Inc., as defined under Section2(76) of the Companies Act,20l3 read with
the Companies (Specification of Definitions Details) Rules, 2014, which were in the
ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis and in accordance with the
provisions of the companies Act, 201 3 and the Rules issued there under.

The Company has not entered into any transactions with the related parties which were at
arm's length basis but not in ordinary course of business.

The details of the related parfy transactions as required under Indian Accounting
Standard- 24 are set out in Note No.4l to the Financial Statements forming part of this
Annual Report.

The Company's policy on Related Par-ty Transaction is available on the website of the
Company at the web-link: httpsillhtllimited.comluploadimages/Z7\O2Z\54??7HTL-
PolicyonRPT.pdf

FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year under review the Company has not accepted any deposit within the
meaning of Section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Location and time where Annual General Meetings of the Company held in the last 3

years are given below:

Financial Year Location Date Time

2023-24
Regd. Office, GST Road, Guindy, Chennai
Thru' Video Conferencing over MS Teams

26.07.2024 12.30 P.M.

2022-23
Regd. Office, GST Road, Guindy, Chennai
Thru' Video Conferencing over MS Teams

28.07.2023 12.30 P.M.

2021-22
Regd. Office, GST Road, Guindy, Chennai
Thru' Video Conferencing over MS Teams

29.07.2022 12 Noon

No EGM was held in the above last 3 years

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STAI\DARDS

Your Directors confirm that the Secretarial Standards issued by the lnstitute of Company

Secretaries of tndia, as applicable to the Company have been complied with.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSOIINEL

During the year under review, Shri G. S. Naidu, Manager, Shri C. D. Ponnappa, Chief

Financial Officer and Shri S. Narayanan, Company Secretary & Vice President (Legal)

continue to be the Key Management Personnel in accordance with the provisions of
Section 203 of the Companies Act,2013 and Rules made thereunder.

Shri G. S. Naidu, Chief Operating Officer has been re-appointed as 'Manager' of the

Company w.e.f. 25.06 .2024 for a further period of one year by the Board of Directors in

their meeting held on 30J2025 on recommendation of the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing

AGM.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES' AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The Company had no employee drawing remuneration specified under Section 197 and

Rule 5(2) to the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

Rules, 2014 during the year under review. Accordingly, the particulars required

thereunder have not been given.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134 of the Companies Act,20l3 with respect

to Directors' Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

l. thatinthepreparationoftheaccountsforthefinancial yearended 3l'tMarch,2025,
the appticable accounting standards have been followed along with proper

explanations relating to material departures;
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2. that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent
(read with Note No. 3 of Notes to the Audited Statement of Accounts) so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

3. that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

4. that the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

5' that the Directors have laid down proper internal financial controls to be followed by
the Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating
effectively; and

6. that the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

DEPOSITORY SYSTEMS

Your Company's Scrip has come under compulsory dematerialisation as per the amended
provisions of the Companies Act. 2013. So far, 74%o of the equity shares have been
dematerialised.

The ISIN allotted to the equity of the Company is INEl33T0l0l t.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In pursuant to the CSR Objectives of the Company, your Company is actively engaged in
CSR initiatives in order to contribute to the upliftment of needy people in healthcare &
educational activities. The details of the ongoing CSR projects undertaken by the
Company are:-

CSR Pro ects of the Com
Mobile
Medical Unit
@ Chennai-
in association
with
Wockhardt
Foundation

Mobile
Medical
Unit @
Hosur- in
association
with
Wockhardt
Foundation

Mobile
Medical Unit-
2 @ Chennai-
in association
with
Wockhardt
Foundation

Inclusive Education for
Children with Special
Needs@Chennai-in
association with Arya
Samaj Seva Foundation
(ASSF) formerly Tamil
Nadu Arya Samaj
Educational Society
(TNAES)

Total Project Cost
(Amgunt in Rs. )

I,05,00,000 1,05,00,000 I,08,85,456 I,75,10,000

Project Period

Commenced on

3 years

t6.03.2022

3 years

30.01.2023

3 Years

02.08.2023

3 Years

01.12.2023
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End on 15.03.202s
(Completed)

29.01.2026
(Ongoing)

01.08.2026
(Oneoins)

30.11.2026
(Ongoing)

Amount Spent as

on 31.3.2025 (in
Rs.)

1,05,00,000 9t,49,070 67,22,566 95,52,000

No of
beneficiaries
covered during
FY 2024-25

36,760 27,777 34,966 90

The Company has a CSR obligation of Rs. 1,32,59,478/- for the current year under review

i.e. FY 2024-25.

The CSR Committee of the Company in their meeting held on 07.03.2025 approved one-

time financial assistance for the CSR Projecl viz, procurement & installation of Smart

Interactive Boards for 20 classrooms benefitting about 800 Rural Students of Lkg. To 1Oth

Std. in Sri Ramakrishna Vidyalaya Matriculation School, Nattarampalli in association

with Ramkrishna Math, Nattarampalli at a total cost of Rs. 24,85,800 out of the above-

mentioned CSR obligation and released the said payment on 13.3.2025. Furthermore, the

CSR Committee of the Company has allocated the residual amount of Rs. 1,07,73,6781'

out of the CSR obligation for FY 2024-25 for the ongoing CSR Project viz.,Inclusive

Education for Children with Special Needs which is being implemented in association

with Arya Samaj Seva Foundation, registered non-profitable Section 8 Company

(formerly a registered society viz., Tamil Nadu Arya Samaj Educational Society) and

released a payment of Rs. 25,98,6401- on21.3.2025 to them as per agreed schedule.

Since the ongoing CSR Project viz., Inclusive Education for Children with Special Needs

is in progress and will be ending in April 2026, the allocated funds to the tune of
Rs. 81,75,038/- will be disbursed in phased manner during FY 2025-26 and in April2026.
Hence, the said balance as on 31.3.2025 is transferred to a separate bank Accountviz.,

HTL Limited - Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility Account - FY 2024-25 with

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited on25.4.2025 as stipulated in the Act.

ln compliance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Act, the Company has laid

down a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy along with Composition of
Committee. The CSR Policy along with Composition of Committee is available on the

website of the Company and may be accessed at the web-link:

httos://htllimited.com/uploadfi le/HTLC SRPolicy2024.pdf

The disclosures as required under the Companies Act,20l3 read with applicable Rules

are furnished in Annexure I and forms part of this Report.

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR'S REPORT

At the 59th Annual General Meeting of the Company, IWs. Oswal Sunil & Company

(Firm Registration. No. 016520N), Chartered Accountants, New Delhi were appointed for

one term of consecutive 5 years as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office till
the conclusion of 64ft Annual General Meeting'
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M/s' Oswal Sunil & Company (Finn Registration. No. 016520N), Chartered Accountants,
Auditors of the Company retire at the conclusion of the ensuing AGM and having
confirmed their eligibility, offer themselves for re-appointment for a second term of
5 years.

The Auditors' Repoft does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Further, there were no frauds reported by the Statutory Auditors to the Audit Committee
or the Board under Section 143(12) of the Act.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules ,2014, your
Company has appointed Shri R. Balasubramanian, Practising Company Secretary having
Membership No. Fl00ll and C.P.No.11979 to conduct the Secretarial Audit of your
Company for the financial year 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed
herewith as Annexure II to this Report.

Remarks by Secretarial Auditor

Further, the Company is required to appoint 2 (lndependent Directors) pursuant to
Section 149(4) of the companies Act, 2013, of which, the company has already
appointed I (One) Independent Director and further in the process of identification and
appointment of another Independent Director.

Explanation by the Board pursuant to section 134(3Xf) of the Act
The Company has already appointed one Women Independent Director who is
independent of management. The Cornpany has identified one more Independent Director
and she will be appointed shorlly as per the provisions of the Act read with the Schedules
and Rules issued thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereoe for the time being in force) after following the required formalities.

PERSONNEL

The manpower strength at the close of the financial year was 321 as compared to 402 at
the beginning of the financialyear.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY/ TECHNOLOGY
FORBIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

ABSORPTION AND

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo as stipulated under Section l3a(3Xm) of the Companies Act,2Ol3
read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is set out in Annexure III and forms
pan of this Report.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN

3ISt I\[{RCH,2O25 AND DATE OF THIS REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the

Company between the end of the financial year (31't March, 2025) and date of this Report

(20th May, 2025).

APPLICATION MADE OR PEI\DING I.II\DER INSOLVENCY & BAI\KRUPTCY

coDE,2016 (IBC)

In pursuant to the Rule 8(5) of Accounts Rules 2014, there is no application made or

pending under IBC, 2016 during the year under review.

SIGNIFICAIIT/]VIATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR

COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

There are no significant I material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts or Tribunals

impacting the going concern status of your Company and its operations in future.

II\DIAI\ ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS)

Your Company's financial statements for the year ended 31't March,2025 are the

financial statements prepared in accordance with lnd AS notified under the Companies

(lndian Accounting Standards Rules,20l5 and Companies (lndian Accounting Standards)

Amendments Rules, 201 6 as applicable.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Having regard to Rule 8 (5) (viii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,20l4, the details in

respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the financial

statements of the Company are as follows:

Your Company maintains appropriate systems of internal control including monitoring

procedures. These internal control systems ensure reliable and accurate financial

reporting, safeguarding of assets, keeping constant check on cost structure and adhering

to management policies. The internal controls are commensurate with the size, scale and

complexity of our operations and facilitate timely detection of any irregularities and early

remedial steps against factors such as loss from unauthorized use and disposition,

Company policies, guidelines and procedures provide for adequate checks and balances

which are meant to ensure that all transactions are authorized, recorded and reported

correctly. The internal controls are continuously assessed and improved / modified to

meet ehanges in business conditions, statutory and accounting requirements.

Constant monitoring of the effectiveness of controls is ensured by periodical audits

performed by the external Intemal Auditor viz., M/s. Anil Aggarwal & Co., Chartered

Accountants, Chennai - 600 032.
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The Audit Committee regularly meets and reviews the results of the various intemal
control audits both with the Auditors as well as with the respective Auditees.

The Audit Committee is apprised of the findings as well as the corrective actiorls that are
taken. Periodical meetings between the Audit Committee and the Company Management
also ensure the necessary checks and balances that may need to be built into the control
system.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has a comprehensive risk management policy to take care of the business
and other risks related to the Company.

The Risk Management Policy of the Company may be accessed at the web-link:

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

As required under Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the
companies (Meetings of Boards and its powers) zol4, the company has adopted a
policy on vigil mechanism / whistle blower. The policy provides direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee in case any employee should choose to report or bring
up a complaint.

Your Company affirms that no one has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit
committee and also that no complaints were received during the year.

The Policy on Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy may be accessed at
the web-link: https:i/htllimited.com/uploadimaees/060422l443l3WhistleBlowerpglicv-
Vi gilMechanism-HTL.fi nal.pdf

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

The Company has a Committee to redress complaints received regarding sexual
harassment in line with the requirernents of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
workplace (Prevention, prohibition, and Redressal) Act, zol3. All employees
(permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees) are covered under this systenr. No
complaints were received during the year under review.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Important factors that would make a difference to the Company's operations/ future
prospects include demand supply conditions, raw material prices, changes in government
regulations, tax regimes and economic clevelopments wilhin the country and abroad and
such other factors.
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CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS,IF ANY

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year

under review.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF F'RAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS

There were no such frauds which were reported by Auditors during the year, under

Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

COST RECORDS AND COST AI.'DIT

Your Company has maintained cost accounts and records as specified by the Central

Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and the relevant rules made

thereunder.

The Board at its meeting held on22"d Ju|y,2024, appointed IWs. STARP & Associates,

Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 004143) as the Cost Auditors of the Company

on recommendation of the Audit Committee to cbnduct audit of cost records maintained

by the Company, for the products viz., Aramid Reinforced Plastic (ARP) Rods, Fibre

Reinforced Plastic (FRP) Rods, HDPE, Wire Harness and any other products coming

under the purview of Cost Audit for the financial year commencing on 0l't Apr1l,2024

and ending on 3l't March, 2025 in accordance with the Section 148 of the Act read with

the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014.The remuneration is to be ratified

by the Members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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Annexure I to the Directors, Report

Annual Report on csR Activities for the Financial year 2024- 25

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

The Company has a CSR policy in pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules,2014.

The Board has broadly identified the following CSR activities, around which your
Company shall be focusing:

(i) Promoting health care including preventive health care.
(ii) Sanitation and making available safe drinking water.
(iii) Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition.
(iv) To arrange establish, run, manage, contror, look after and supervise the

widows homes, old age homes, orphanages, child welfare centres and to
provide medical relief and/or aid to the suffering human body.

(v) To establish sponsor, administer and provide funds, stipends, scholarships
and study grants to enable poor deserving and /or meritorious students and
teachers to pursue their studies, research and training in any fields in India.

(vi) Promoting education, including special education and employment
enhancing vocation skills especiaily among children, youth, women,
elderly and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects.

(vii) Rural development projecrs.
Composition of CSR Committee:

Shri B. K. Nath ceased to be a Member in the committee consequent upon
cessation of his directorship on withdrawal of nomination from the Board of the
Company by Government of India w.e.f. April 16.2024.

Shri Pankaj Garg inducted as Member of the committee w.e.f. July 22,2024.

2.

sl.
No.

Name of Director Designation / Nature
of Directorship

Number of
meetings of

CSR
Committee

held during the
year

Number of
Meetings of

csR
Committee

attended during
the vear

1 Dr. R.M. Kastia Chairman / Non -
Executive Director

I I

2 ShriK.C. Jani Member / Non -
Executive Director

I I

3 Dr. Tamali Sengupta Member / Non -
Executive Woman

Independent Director

I I

4 Shri Pankaj Garg Member / Non -
Execntive Nominee

Director

I I
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3 Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy

and CSR Projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the

Company:

Composition of CSR Committee:

https ://htl I im ited.com/uploadfi lelHTLC SRPo I icy2024. pdf

CSR Policy:

https ://htl lim ited.com/uploadfi lelHTLC SRPoI icy2024. pdf

Approved CSR Projects:

https://htllimited.com/uploadimages/080622I62407HTLCSRProject-Chennai.pdf

https:/ftrtllimited.com/uploadimages/O80622 l626l4HTLCSRProject-Hosur.pdf

hnps ://htl lim ited.com/u p loadim ages/3 003 2 3 I 8005 3 HTL-C SR Proj ect-

2ndMMUChennai.pdf

https:/ftrtllim ited.com/uploadimaees/ I 40224 I I I 83 gDAVChennai-

InclusiveEducationlnitiativeforChildrenwithSpecialNeeds-FY2023-24.pdf

https://trtllimited.com/uploadfile/Purchase-and-lnstallation-of-Smart-Interactive-
Boards.pdf

Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact assessment of
CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,2014, if applicable.

Not Applicable.

(a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).

The average net profits of the Company during the last three years is

Rs. 66,29,73'913. 18/-.

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):

Rs. 1,32,59,4781-.

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the

previous financial years:

Nil

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any:

Not ApPlicable.

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]:

Rs. 1,32,59,4781-.

(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both ongoing Project and other than

Ongoing Project):- Rs. 50,84,440/-

5

4.

6.
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(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: - Nil
(c) Amount spent on rmpact Assessment, if applicable: - Not Applicable
(d) Total amount spent for the Financiar year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: - Rs. 50,g4,440/-
(e) csR amount spent or unspent for the financial year 2024-2s:

Total
Amount
Spent for the
Financial
Year 2024-25
(in Rs.)

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Amount
transferred to Unspent
CSR Account as per
section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any
fund specified under Schedule
VII as per second proviso to
section 135(5).

Amount Date
transfer

of Name of
the
Fund

Amount Date of
transfer

50,84,440 81,75,039 25.4.2025 Nil

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any: - Nil

7 Details of Unspent cSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

whether any capital has been created or acquired through csR amount spent
in the financial year: Yes

sl.
No.

Particular Amount
(in Rs.)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the com pany as per
section I 35 5

1,32,59,479

(i i) Totalamount for the Financial Year 50,84,440
(iii) Excess amount for the financial lt I Nil
( lv) Surplus an ng out of the CS R projects or programmes or

act lv I ties of the financ al fou s I an
Nil

(v) Amount availabl e for set offin succeeding financial years
lt lv

Nil

sl.
No.

Preceding
Financial
Year

Amount
transferred
to Unspent
CSR
Account
under
section 135
(6) (in Rs.)

Balance
Amount in

Unspent CSR
Account

under Section
13s (6) (in Rs.)

Amount
spent in the
Financial
Year (in
Rs.)

Amount transferred
to any fund specified
under Schedule VII
as per second
proviso to section
135(r, if any.

Amount
remaining to
be spent in
succeeding
financial
years. (in Rs.)

Amount
(in Rs)

Date of
transfer

I 2021-22 86,06,035 26,85,190 26,85,190 0

2 2022-23 99,05,665 54,23,640 40,72,709 13,50,93 I

3 2023-24 97,59,691 97,59,691 55,95,901 41,62,990
Total 2,82,70,391 1,78,67,521 1,23,53,700 55,I3,921

8.
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9

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created / acquired

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through
Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the financial year (All the

fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no,

Municipal Office/lVlunicipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified

and also the area of the immovable property as well as boundaries): -

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the

average net profit as per section 135(5): -

Since the tenure of the ongoing CSR Project of the Company viz., Inclusive

Education for Children with Special Needs is three years and is ending in April

2026, the allocated amount of Rs. 81.75,038/- is transfened to a separate bank

Account viz., HTL Limited - Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility Account- FY

2024-25 with Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited, Anna Salai Branch, Chennai on

25.4.2025 as per the Act and will be spent / disbursed as per the approved Project

Schedule in a phased manner, as permitted in the Companies Act.

Date : 20.5.2025 Mahendra Nahata
Director

DIN: 00052898

Rajeev Sabherwal
Chairman of CSR Committee

DN: 08420761

sr.
No.

Short
particulars
of the
property or
asset(s)

Iincluding
complete
address and
location of
the Droperwl

Pincode
of the
property
or
asset(s)

Date of
creation

Amount
of CSR
amount
spent

Details of entity/ AuthoritY/
beneficiary of the registered owner

CSR
Registration
Number, if
applicable

Name Registered
address

I 20 Smart
Boards with
required
fittings at Sri
Ramakrishna
Vidyalaya
Matriculation
School,
Kuppam
Road,
Nattarampalli,
Tamil Nadu,

635 852 29.3.2025 24,85,800 csR00002806 Ramakrishna
Math

Headquarters
Building, PO
Belur Math,
PS Bally,
West Bengal
-711202.

.r j'rl
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Annexure II to the Directors' Report

Form No. MR-3
SECRETA RIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3ISI MARCH 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(l) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,20l4]

To,
The Members,
HTL Limited,
CIN: U93090TN I 960PLC0043 5 5
G.S.T. Road, Guindy,
Chennai - 600032

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by HTL Limited (hereinafter called 

-.,tire 
Company,')

for the year ended 31.03.2025. The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me
a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 3l't March 2025 ('Audit Period'), has complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
Compliance-Mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and iubject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and retums filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 3I't March 2025 according to the
provisions of:

l. The companies Act, 20 r 3 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA'; and the rules made thereunder;
(Not applicable during the Audit period).

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; (Not
applicable during the Audit period).

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act. 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and Extemal
commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable during the Audit period).

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (,SEBI Act'): -

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 201 l;(Not applicable during the Audit period).

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015; (Not appricabre during the Audit period).
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The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable during the Audit
period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations,20l5 (Not applicable during the Audit period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits

and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable during the Audit period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (lssue and Listing of Non-

Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable during the Audit
period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing

with client (Not applicable during the Audit period).

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)

Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable during the Audit period).

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,

2018 (Not applicable during the Audit period).

6. Labour Laws:

a. The Factories Act, 1948

b. lndustrial DisPutes Act,1947
c. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

d. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

e. Employees' State lnsurance Act, 1948

f. The Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

g. The PaYment of Bonus Act, 1965

h. The Payment of GratuitY Act, 1972

i. The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970

j. The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

k. The Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act, 1986

L The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act,1946
m. The Employees' Compensation Act, 1923

n. Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

o. The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act,2013

7. Environmental Laws:

a. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

b. The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act,l974
c. The Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, l98l

Based on the representation given by the Management of the Company, it is observed that there

are no other laws which are specifically applicable to the business of the Company.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS- I ) and General

Meetings (SS-2) issued by The lnstitute of Company Secretaries of lndia.

c.

d.

e

f.

6b'
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(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company. (Not applicable during the Audit
period).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. Further, th" Cornpa,ly is required to
appoint 2 (lndependent Directors) pursuant to Section 149(4) of the Companies Act, )0rc, ot
which, the Company has already appointed I (One) Independent Director and further in the
process of identification and appointment ofanother Independent Director.

I FURTHER REPORT THAT the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws,
like direct and indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been
subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated professiolals.

I FURTHER REPORT THAT:
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-
Executive Directors, Independent Director and Woman Independent Director except as
mentioned above. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exisls for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

I FURTHER REPORT THAT there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I FURTHER REPORT THAT during the audit period, the Company had the following event
which had bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of thi above referred law{ rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards etc:

In pursuant to Section 180(l)(c) of the Companies Act, the Shareholders of the Company had
empowered the Board earlier to borrow money(ies) for an aggregate amount of Rs. 500 crores
with a validity period of 3 years i.e. FY 2023-24 to 2025-26 as-itip-ulated by DoT, GOI (holder of
26%o of shares of the Company).

On representation from the Company, the DoT, GOI had consented for removal of the restriction
of3 years.

Accordingly, the Shareholders of the Company vide resolution dated l5th April,2024 have
accorded their approval for borrowing lirnits of the Company as prescribed rys lgoirXc) of theAct upto Rs' 500 crores, without any restriction on the perioo orvalaity.

R. Balasubramanian
Practising Company Secretary
FCS No. I00ll CP No. I1979
UDIN: F01001 1G0000764G2
PR No. 264112022

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as ,.Annexure A,, andforms an integral part of this report.

Place: Chennai
Date: 10.04.2025
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ttAnnexure Att

To,
The Members,
HTL Limited,
CIN: U93090TN 1 960PLC004355
G.S.T. Road, Guindy,
Chennai - 600032

I report that:

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the

Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on

my audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable

assurance about the correctness ofthe contents ofthe Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I

believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
AccoLlnts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,

regulations, standards is the responsibiliry of management. My examination was limited
to the verification ofprocedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted

the affairs of the Company.

2

R Balasubramanian
Practising Company Secretary
FCS No. l00ll, CP No. 11979
UDIN: F0r00l rG00007 6462
PR No. 264112022

Place: Chennai
Date: 10.04.2025
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Annexure III to the Directors' Report

INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,2013 READ
WITH COMPANIES (ACCOT]NTS) RULES, 2014 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
3tsr MARCH,zozs.

(A) CONSERVATTON OF ENERGY:

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

The company's operation involves low energy consumption. Nevertheless,
energy conservation measures have already been taken wherever possible.
Efforts to conserve and optimise the use of energy through improved
operational methods and other means will continue.

(ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternative sources of
Energy:

The Company during the period under review has started drawing Solar and
Wind Power from Amplus IRU Private Lirnited for the Power requirements
at its Guindy & Hosur plants.

(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments: NIL

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTTON:

(i) The efforts made by the company towards technolog;y absorption:

The technology of the products has been absorbed substantially during the
year under review.

(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution:

As a result of technology absorption, Company has been able to reduce
product cost.

(iii) rn case of imported technology (imported during the last 5 years
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year), the following
information may be furnished: NIL

(a) The details of Technology Imported

(b) The year of Imporr

(c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed

(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption
has not taken place and the reasons thereof and
future plans of action

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
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(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development (R&D): Nil

(c) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNTNGS AND OUTGO:

Foreign exchange earned in terms of actual

inflows.
Foreign exchange outgo in terms of actual

outflows.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Financial Financial
Year ended Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

3,646.75 9,333.29

13,828. l0 13,695.95

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Mumbai
Date:20.5.2025

Mahendra Nahata
Chairman

DIN: 00052898



/t+

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of HTL Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HTL Limited (,,the Company',),
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the statement of profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies ect, ZOt: 1..the
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2025,
and loss (including other comprehensive loss), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chaftered Accor-rntants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the flnancial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act' 2013 arrd the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are no
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Other Information
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report
and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor,s
report thereon. The other information comprising the above documents is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statemellts does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent

with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit, or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information comprising the above documents, if we conclude that there is

a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with

governance and take necessary actions as per applicable laws and regulations.

l\4anagement's Responsibil ity for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the mafters stated in Section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these f,tnancial statements that

give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive

in"o-", changes in equity.and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting

principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under

Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the

Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are

riasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of

the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe financial statement that

give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's

ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, mafiers related to going concern

and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting

process.

Auditor,s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

material if, individuatly or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identi& and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of intemal control.
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' Obtain an understanding of intemal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3Xi) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonable,ess of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's uuitity to
continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, *. *. required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modifu our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concem.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate' makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. we consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identifo during our audit.

we also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with thern all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where appl icable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those maffers
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. we describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
A' As required by the companies (Auditor,s Report) order, 2020 (,.the order,), issued by the

Central Govemment of India in terms of sub-section (ll) of section 143 olthe companies
Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure-A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order.



/rrv

B. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repoft that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and beliefwere necessary for the purposes ofour audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive

Income, the Statement of Cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this

Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3lst March,

2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on

3 1 st March, 2025 fuom being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(0 With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

"Annexure B".

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance

with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the

best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the company has

paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated

by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance

with Rule I I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the

best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in

its Note No 39 of the financial statements;

ii) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including

derivative contracts;

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company'

(i)
(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and beliel no

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or

loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or

kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign

entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or

otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
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other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (,,Funding parties',), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule I I (e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

O The Company has not paid or proposed any dividend during the year.

(k) Based on our examination which included test checks and representation made by the
management, the company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016520N

Nishant Bhansali
Partner
Membership No: 532900
UDIN ; 255329008MLYCH8950

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 20,2025
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ANNEXURE'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in "Paragraph-A" under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'

section of our report to the Members of HTL Limited of even date)

(a)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including

quantitative details and situations of its Property Plant and Equipment.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its Intangible

Assets.

(b) Property, Plant and equipment of the company are physically verified according to a phased

program of coverage which, in our opinion, is reasonable. Pursuant to the program, physical

verification of the Property, Plant and equipment was carried out during the year by the

management and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, the title deeds of all immovable

properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company except

the following:

(d) The company has not revalued its Properfy Plant and Equipment or Intangible Assets or both

during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have been initiated

or are pending against, the company for holding any benami property under Benami

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a) As per the information and explanation given to us, the Inventories, except for stocks lying
with certain third parties from whom confirmations have been obtained for stocks held as at

the year end, have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during

the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management

is appropriate. In our opinion, the discrepancies noticed on physical verification were less

than l0olo in aggregate for each class of inventory and the same have been properly dealt with
in the books ofaccounts.

2

No 52 Years Pattas and Encumbrance

Certificate are available in
the name of Company and

the process of getting clear
title is in process. The

Assigned land is subject to
dispute pending at Madras

High Coun. Refer Note 44

to the Financial Statement.

30.99 acres

of Assigned
land at
Guindy
Industrial
Area,
Chennai

Re. I Govemment
of
Tamilnadu
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(b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. As per the information and
explanation given to us and represented by the management in Note 23.4 of the financial
statement, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with banks are generally in
agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

3. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not made investments
in or provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties.
Accordingly, provision of clause 3(iii) are not applicable to the Company.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given ts us, the Company has, in
respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, complied with the provisions of Section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits, within the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, and the provisions of Section
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence the provisions of
clause 3(v) are not applicable to the Company.

6. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Govemment for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(l) of the
Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records
have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

7.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and records examined by us, the
Company is generally regular in depositing, with the appropriate authorities, undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, goods and
service tax, custom duty, cess and other material statutory dues wherever applicable.
According to information and explanation given to us, and as per the records examined by us,
no undisputed arrears of statutory dues outstanding as at 3l't March, 2025 from the date they
became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and as certified by the
management, dues outstanding of income-tax on account of any dispute is as follows:

According to the information and explanation given to us, there was no transaction which was not
recorded in the books ofaccount and which has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, l96l (43 of 1 961).

8.

9

(a) According to our audit procedures and the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest
to any lender.

The CGST Act
2017

Goods &
Seryice Tax

332 Lacs 33 Lacs
July 2017 to
March 2018

Commissioner
Central Tax,
Appeals -ll, GST
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(b) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations

given to us, the Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial

institution or any other lender.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations

given to us, the terms loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations

given to us, the fund raised on short term basis have not been utilized for the long term

purposes.

(e) ln our opinion, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and

accordingly the requirements under paragraph 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) are not applicable to the

company.

l0
(a) Based on our examinations of the records and information and explanations given to us, the

company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer (IPO) or further public offer

(FPO) (including debt instruments).

(b) Based on our examinations of the records and information and explanations given to us, the

company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or

convertible debentures during the year.

ll
(a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations

given to us, no fraud by the company or on the company has been noticed or reported during

the year.

(b) To the best ofour knowledge and belief, no report under sub-section (12) ofsection 143 ofthe

Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination,

there were no whistle-blower complaints received during the year by the Company;

12. The Company is not a Nidhi company, hence the provisions of clause 3(xii) are not applicable to

the Company.

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177

and 188 of Companies Act 20 l3 where applicable and details of such transactions have been

disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

t4
(a) In our opinion and according to information provided to us, the internal audit of the company

is being carried out by an independent firm of chartered accountants for which a scope of
work has been agreed upon with them which is generally commensurate with the size and

nature of the business of the Company.
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(b) we have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company
during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

15. According to the information and explanation given to us and the books of accounts verified by
us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected
with him and hence the provision of clause 3(xv) are not applicable to the company.

16. In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

l7' The company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding fi nancial year.

l8' There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

19. On the basis ofthe financial ratios, ageing and expected dates ofrealisation offinancial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no
material uncertainfy exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We fufther state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabiliiies falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and
when they fall due.

20

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies
Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

(b) In respect ofongoing projects, the company has transferred unspent amount for the financial
year ending March 3l , 2025 to a separate CSR special account within a period of thirty days
from the end of the financial year in compliance with provisions of section flStll
of the said Act.

For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016520N

Nishant Bhansali
Partner
Membership No: 532900
UDN: 255329008MLYCH8950

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 20,2025
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HTL LIMITED AS ON 3IST MARCH,2025.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section

3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,2013 ("the Act")

TO THE MEMBERS OF HTL LIMITED

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of HTL LIMITED ("the

Company") as of March, 31,2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the

Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on Audit of
Internal financial control over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance

of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding

of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required

under the Companies Act,20l3.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance

Note on audit of Intemal financial controls over financial reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the

standards on auditing as specified under Section 143 (10) of the companies act, 2013, to the extent

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of intemal

financial controls and, both issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. Those standards

and the guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal financial controls over

financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all

material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

internal financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our

audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
intemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness

exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on

the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufftcient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the intemal financial controls system over financial reponing.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (l) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation offinancial statementsin accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the .o-puny,,
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to elror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to
the risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has' in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controL system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31,2025, based on the intemal control over financialieportingcriteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Firrancial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016520N

Nishant Bhansali
Partner
Membership No: 532900
UDIN: 2s 5329O0BMLYCH8950

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 20,2025
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HTL Limited
(ClN: U93090TN1960PLC004355)
(All amounts erc in Rs Lakhs.)

Balance Sheet as at March 31,2025

The accompanying notes form an integral pan ofthe financial statement.

As per our report ofeven date attached

For Oswal Sunil & Compeny
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.:016520N

NISHANT BHANSALI
Partner
M.No.: 532900

For and on behalfof the Board

MAHENDRA NATIATA
Chairman
DIN: 00052898

S. NARAYANAN
Company Secretrry
M.No ACS5772

K.C. JANI
Dircctor

DIN: 02535299

C D PONNAPPA
Chief Financial Officer

PAN: ACZPPl337Q

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0

409. I 5

t64.'79

193.90

304 8r

14,497.43
1,084.72

61.91

t5,0'76.62
710.75

75 23

5'77.t8

64t.42

Assets
Non-current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and EqutPment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) lntangible assets (other than Goodwill)
(d) Financial Assets

(l) lnvestments
(ii) Others

(e) Defened tax Assets (Net)

(fl Other non-curent .Bsets
17.08 1.2016,716.71Total non-current assets

il

t2
l3
t4
l5
l6
t'7

l8

11 30

24,636.15
26.39

1,816.36
489.80

99.94

t.854.64

13,791 56

18.60

23,937.99
5.28

t,413.97
406 18

36 t3
877 70

13,2s9.59(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets

(i) lnvestments
(ii) Trade Receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above
(v) Others

(c) Cunent Tax Assets (Net)
(d) Other current assets

Current Assets

42,726.14 39,955.44Total current assets

59.442.8s s7.036.64Total Assets

Equity and Liabilitics
Equitv

(a) Equity Share capital
(b) Other Eouiw

l9
l9

1,500.00
l4,l 83.30

1,500.00
t5,684 25

15.6E3.30 17.184.25Total Eouiw

20

2t
22

9

8,585 9 r

269 30

5,855 36

7,200 00
269 29
301 60

Linbilitics
Non-current Liabilities

(a) Financial Lrabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Others

(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

Totrl non-current lixbilities E,E55.2 r 13,62E.25

r,259 l 8

t4,026.69

I,335.76
539.t7
s6.02

t7,687 52

547.45

9,846.72

|,234.46
t,77'7.58

29.t8
474.49

12,3t4 26

Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade Payables

(a) total outstanding dues ofmicro enterprrses and small enterprises;
(b) total outstanding dues ofcreditors other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises.
(iii) Other financial liabilities

(b) Other cunent liabilities
(c) Provisions
(d) Cunent Tax Liabilities (Net)

23

24

25

26
27
t7

34.904.34 26.224.14Totil currenl liabilitics

Totrl I-irbilities 43.7s9.s5 39.852.39

Totfll eouitv nnd liebilities s9,442.85 57,036.64

New Delhi, 20th May 2025 Mumbar,20th May 2025
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HTL Limited
(CIN: U93090TNl 960PLC004355)
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs.)
Statement of Prolit and loss for the year ended March 31,2025

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statement.

As per our report ofeven date attached

For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 016520N

NISHANT BHANSALI
Partner
M.No.: 532900

For and on behalfofthe Board

MAHENDRA NAHATA
Chairman
DIN: 00052898

S. NARAYANAN
Company Secretary
M.No ACS5772
Mumbai, 20thMay 2025

K.C. JANI
Director

DIN: 02535299

C D PONNAPPA
Chief Financial Officer

PAN: ACZPPl337Q

INCOME
Revenue from operations
Other Income

28

29
57,459.53

486.74
84,428.5s

432.31
Total Income (I) 57,946.27 84,860.86

EXPENSE
Cost of Material Consumed
Other Direct cost
Purchases of S tock-in-Trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and
Stock-in-Trade
Employee benefi ts expense
Finance Costs

Depreciation, Amortization and Impairment expenses
Other Expenses

32

30
3t

JJ

34

4&6
35

4t,284.98
762.53

9s 1.33

(s r e.3l)

6,785.87
3,569.85
2,030.87
5,033.25

2,056.3t

6,489.60
3,273.20
2,272.t9
5,337.91

59,272.71

I,253. I 3

684.82

Total Expenses (II) 59,899.37 80.639.87

Prolit / (loss) before exceptional items and income tax (I-II)
Exceptional item

(1,953.10) 4,220.99

Profit / (Loss) before tax (III - ry) (1.9s3.10) 4,220.99

60.06
(501.20)

1,387.09
(22.96')

Q41.t4\ 1,364.t3
Profit / (Loss) for the year (V-V!

Other Comprehensive Income / (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Remeasurement ofdefined benefit plans;
(ii) Income tax on above item;

Tax expenses
Current tax
Deferred Tax

(1,s11.96)

t4.71
(3.70)

2,856.86

(12.62)
3.r8

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (VIII) 11.01 (9.44\

Tota! comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (VII+V[I) (1,500.95) 2,847.42

I.

II.

x

III
IV
V

VI

VII

vuI

Eamings / (loss) per share attributable to the equity holders of the
Company during the year
Basic (in Rs.)
Diluted (in Rs.)

36

36
(r00.80)
(r00.80)

190.46
190.46

New Delhi, 20thMay 2025

ffiffii,*& ffittuffiffi,rffii W+i
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HTL Limitcd
(ClN: U93090TN1960PLC004355)
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs.)
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 3lst March' 2025

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statement.

As per our report ofeven date aftached

For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 016520N

n-ISHANT BHANSALI
Partner
M.No.: 532900

For and on behalfofthe Board

MAHENDRA NAHATA
Chairman
DIN: 0005289E

S. NARAYANAN
Company Secretary
Dl.No ACS5772
Mumbai, 20th May 2025

K.C. JANI
Director

DIN: 02535299

C D PONNAPPA
Chief Financial Officer

PAN: ACZPPI33TQ

2,030.E7
65.43
11.46

3,569.E5
(87,01)
60.68

(r,9s3.10) 4,220 99

2,272.t9
9.12
8.60

3,273.20
(ls6 17)

44.37

(976.94)
0.01

(r,410.64)
4,769,16
(59E.36)

(763.s9)
(s3 l .97)

4,831.02
(76 91)

3,698.1E

(s,797.42)
3,985.94
(480.4s)
(e7.86)

132.92
48.90

1,020.90
E,485.23

(2.60t.32\

9,612.30

l. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit / (Loss) Before Tax

Adjustments for
Depreciation, Amonization and lmpairment exPenses

Provision for Expected Credit Loss, Bad debts and other balances written off
Loss on sales/discard of propeny, plant and equipment

Finance costs

Interest Income
Exchange Fluctuation lncome (Net)

Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables
(lncrease)/Decrease in inventories
Increase(Decrease) in trade payables

(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets

(Increase)/Decrease in other Non-current assets
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets

Increase/(Decrease) in other Non-cunent liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities
Cash generated from operations
lncome taxes (oaid)/refund

Nditiisf:fiifiii) Iii$Eir'1fl ooel6fififrilatitiiiitas'|;"]'.',i'],]':'"rllr' ':'' ' 4,170.E0 s,883.9r

( l ,186.49)
(s 30)
6.t2

( l s.e5)
7.30

(.109 I 5)

106.25

Cash flows from investlng activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment including CWIP & Capital Advances
Payment for intangibte assets (other than goodwill) including CWIP

Proceeds from sale ofpropeny, plant and equipment
Bank deposits (placed)/matured (net)

Proceeds lrom sale of investments
Payments for purchase of investments
lnterest received t26 04

504 l0

(2,265 50)
(r 66)

Nei tash''frbdi'l ariieAitJ Invciiiiic a'itiritids 0,497.22\ ( r.637.02)

ltt Cash llows from financing activities
Proceeds of bonowings
(Repayment) of borrowings and advances

Interest Daid

t2,282.7 |

( r r,378.90)
(3.556.2E)

5,323 64
(3,e4s t2)
(5.629 05)

NCt eash-frliml (u3dd.iri)"fihriliains,'activities. ;i . 
' 'r. ., r :,.. (2.652.471 (4.250.53)

iefiiir6nile(d'ccii{sb}in casti.'illilllt{StnEaiilf.tlents ( [ +,llr.+ IIri'{. 2t,tt (3.64\
v Cash and cah eouivalents at the becinninp ofthe financial vear s.28 892

26.39 5.28

Notes:
i)The Statement ofCash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set-out in the Ind AS - T "Statement ofCash Flow" as specified in the

Companies (Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.
ii) Figures in bracket indicate cash outflow.
iii) Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note l4) comprise ofthe following

Cash on Hand 0.66 0.50

BalancewithBanksinCurrentAccounts 14.15 478
Fixed Deoosits with Bank I l.5E
Balances per statement of cash flows 26.39 s.28

Movement due to cash transactions as per the Statement ofCash Flows
t6,79t.12
t,378.5t

iv) Analysis of movement in borrowings
Borrowings at the beginning of the year I 8,169.63

903. E 1

Borrowincs at the eod of the Year 18,169.6319,073.44

New Delhi, 20th May 2025
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HTL Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2025

(Alr amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information
HTL Limited ("the Company") was a wholly owned undertaking of Government of India ('GOI') under the

Department of Telecommunications ('DOT') till l6d' October'2O01 when the Government divested '14 Yo of
its shareholding in the Company as part of its divestment program, including transfer of management control,

to HFCL Limited, which is now the Holding Company. From 2015-16, the Company has started

manufacturing Optical Fiber Cables and Passive Connectivity Solution.

The flrnancial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 20ft May 2025.

2. Application of new and revised Ind -AS
All the Indian Accounting Standards issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the

Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) read with Section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable have been considered in preparing these furancial statements.

Recent accounting pronouncements:-
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards

under Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended

March 31,2025, MCA has notified tnd AS - 117 lnsurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 -
Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1,2025.The
Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not

have any significant impact in its standalone ltnancial statements.

3. Material accounting policies

3.1. Basis of preparation

3.1.1. Comoliance with Ind AS
All the Indian Accounting Standards issued under section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 and

notified by the Minisury of Corporate Affairs (MCA) under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules,2015 (as amended) till the furancial statements are approved have been

considered in preparation of these Financial Statements.

3.1.2. Historical Cost Convention

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the

followings:
o certain furancial assets and liabilities and contingent consideration that is measured at fair

value;
. assets held for sale measured at fair value less cost to sell;

o defined benefit plans plan assets measured at fair value; and

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services. The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees Lakhs except

where otherwise stated.

3.1.3. Use of Estimates and Judsments

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement

principles of Ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates and judgements

sl



6o
HTL Limited
Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended March 3l,z02s
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated)

that affect the reported balances ofassets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent Iiabilities
as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the
periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are
affected

3.1.4. Material accountine oolicies

The accounting policies, as set out in the following paragraph of this note, have been consistently
applied, to all the periods presented in these financial statements except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a
change in the accounting policy.

The company adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to Ind AS I) from I April
2023' Although the amendments did not result in any changes in the accounting policies
themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of 'material' rather than 'significant' accounting policies.
The amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting
policies, assisting entities to provide useful, entify-specific accounting policy information that users
need to understand other information in the financial statements.

3.2. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on currenU non-current classification
An asset is treated as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or

b) Held primarily for the purpose of ffading, or

c) Expected to be realised within rwelve months after the reporting period other than for (a) above, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period other than for (a) above, or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
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after.the reporting period

All other liabilities are classilted as non-current.

3.3. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet

date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to

generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use'

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels as follows

Level I - Quoted (unadjusted)

This hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices

Level2
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level2 inputs include the following:

a) quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.

b) quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active.

c) inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability.

d) Market - corroborated inPuts.

Level 3

They are unobservable inputs for the asset or liabiliry reflecting significant modifications to observable

related market data or Company's assumptions about pricing by market participants. Fair values are

determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by

prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available

market data.

a

a

3.4. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposat groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying

amount and fair value less costs to sell.

5
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3.5. Property Plant and Equipment

Freehold Land is carried at the actual cost. All other items of PPE are stated at actual cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss. Actual cost is inclusive of fleight, installation cost, duties, taxes and other
incidental expenses for bringing the asset to its working conditions for its intended use (net of eligible input
taxes) and any cost directly attributable to bring the asset into the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Management.
Amounts paid towards the acquisition of properfy, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting
date and the cost ofproperty, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such date are disclosed
under capital advances and capital work-in-progress (cwrp) respectively.

Significant Parts of an item of PPE (including major inspections) having different useful lives & material
value or other factors are accounted for as separate components. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Depreciation of these PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. property, plant and
Equipment (PPE) and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once classified as held for sale.

Depreciation is provided for on Buildings (including buildings raken on lease) and plant & Machinery on
straight line method and on other PPE on written down value method on the basis of useful life. On assets
acquired on lease (including improvements to the leasehold premises), amortization has been provided for
on Straight Line Method over the primary period of lease.

The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed on an annual basis and if necessary, changes in
estimates are accounted for prospectively.

Depreciation on subsequent expenditure on PPE arising on account ofcapital improvement or other factors
is provided for prospectively over the remaining useful life.

The useful life of property, plant and equipment are as follovvs:-

*For these classes of assets based on intemal assessment and technical evaluation, the management
believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which the Management expects
to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful livei as prescribed
under Part C of Schedule II of Companies Act 2013.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets or over the shorter of the assets useful life and the lease term if there is an uncertainty that

Freehold Buildings* Factory Building ; 20 years
Staff Quarters : 40 years

Leasehold Over the of lease
Plant & Machin 7.5- l5 Years
Furniture & Fixtures l0
Electrical Installations l0 years

3-6
Office tS 5

Vehicles 8 years
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the company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term'

An item of PPE is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise

from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
PPE is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and

is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.6. Intangible Assets

(D Recognition of intangible assets

tL Internally Generated Assels

Intangible assets that are acquired subsequent to transition date are measured on initial recognition

at cost. Fotlowing initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intemally generated intangible asset arising from

development activity is recognised at cost on ddmonstration of its technical feasibility, the intention

and ability of the Company to complete, use or sell it, only if, it is probable that the asset would

generate future economic benefit and to use or sell of the asset, adequate resources to complete the

development are available and the expenditure attributable to the said assets during its development

can be measured reliably.

b. Computer software

Purchase of computer software used for the purpose of operations is capitalized. However, any

expenses on software support, maintenance, upgrade etc. payable periodically is charged to the

Statement of Profit & Loss.

(ii) De-recognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected

from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as

the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

(iii) Amortisation periods and methods

Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over a period ranging between 2-5 years which

equates its economic useful life.

3.7, Financialinstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

Iiabiliry or equity instrument of another entity.

3.7,1. Financialassets

Initial reco gn itio n an d me as u rement
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All furancial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, ffansaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition ofthe financial
asset. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at
transaction price. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

S ubsequenl measuremenl

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories based on
business model of the entiry:

o Debt instruments at amortized cost
o Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTocD
o Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTpL)
o Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCD

Debt instruments qt amortized cost

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (sppl) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business moclel is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent Sppl

Debt instruments included within the FVTocl category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCf).
However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange
gain or loss in the P&L. on derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized inocl is reclassified from the equiry to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instmment is
reported as interest income using the EIR method.

De.bt instrument at FVTPL

Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.
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ln addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instmment, which otherwise meets amortized cost

or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates

a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). The Company has not

designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes

recognized in the P&L.

Eouitv investmenls

All equity investments are measured at fair value. Equity instruments, the Company may make an

irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value.

The Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. The classification is made on

initial recognition and is irrevocable

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the

instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCl. This amount is not recycled from OCI to P &

L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within

equity.

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised cost

or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly

attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

immediately recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss'

Equity instruments inctuded within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes

recognized in the P&L.

D e- reco g n itio n of Jinanc ial as s ets

A financial asset is de-recognized only when

o The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

o retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a

contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients'

Where the Company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks

and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is de-recognized.

Where the Company has neither transferred a frnancial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards

of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the Group has not retained control

of the flrnancial asset. Where the company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to

be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset'

Imp ai r ment of ftnancial ass ets

The Company assesses at each date ofbalance sheet whether a financial asset or a group offinancial assets

is impaired. tnd AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. h
determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by

computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The
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provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking
information' For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the
l2-months expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit
risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.
ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (p&L).

3.7.2 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the company are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a firancial liability and an equity
instrument.

Initial recognition and measuremenl
Financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes aparty to the contractual provisions of the
instrument' Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition,
they are classified as fair value through profit and loss.

Subsequent meas u rement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are mea-sured at fair value with all changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end offinancial period which are unpaid. Trade and other payabies are presented as current liabilities unlesspayment is not due within l2 months after the reporting period. 1-hly are recognized initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Loans snd borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization pro."rr.

F in anc lal gu o rante e conl racts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured
at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of lnd AS 109and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization.

Derecognition

A financial liabiliry is derecognised when the obligation under the riability is discharged or cancelled orexpires.
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3.8* Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.

If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates

the asset,s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-

. generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows

that are largely independent ofthOse from other assets or groups ofassets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered

impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount'

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-

tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific

to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into

account. Ifno such transactions can be identified, an dppropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the

statement of profit and loss.

A previously recognized impairment loss (except for goodwill) is reversed only if there has been a change

in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was

recognized. The reversal is limited to the carrying amount of the asset'

3.9. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for as

follows:

n Raw materials: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to

their present location and condition. Cost is determined on Weighted Average Cost Method.

tr Finished goods and work in progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion

of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs'

Cost is determined on Standard Cost method.

!l Traded goods: Cost inctudes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their

present lOcation and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

L r Contract Work in Progress : lt is valued at cost

Loose Tools (Consumables) -lt is Valued at cost after write off at 27 .82yo

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs

of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale'
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3.1 0. Revenue recognition

Sale of Soods
The company derives revenue from sale of manufactured goods and traded goods. In accordance
with Ind AS 115, the company recognizes revenue from sale of products and services at a time
when performance obligation is satisfied and upon transfer of control of promised products or
services to customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the company expects to receive in
exchange for their products or services.

The company disaggregates the revenue based on nature of products/geography. The company
presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss.

Expoft Incentives
Export incentives are accounted for on export of goods, if the entitlements can be estimated with
reasonable accuracy and conditions precedent to claim are reasonably expected to be fulfilled.

!

tr In lncome
Interest income on deposits with banks is recognised at effective interest rate applicable.
Interest income from other ltnancial assets is recognised at the effective interest rate method on
initial recognition.

i_l Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

fl Rental income
Rental income arising from operating leases or on investment properties is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in other non-operating income in the
statement of profit and loss.

- lnsurance CIaims
Insurance claims are accounted for as and when admitted by the concemed authority.

3.11. Foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees which represents the cunency of the economic
environment in which it operates.

Transactions in currencies other than the Company's functional curency (are recognized at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary items denominated in forelgn currency at
the year end are translated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference between the date of transaction and on
settlement or on translation is recognized in the profit and loss account as income or expense.

Non monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation difference on such assets and liabilities
carried at fair value are reported as part offair value gain or loss.
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3.12. Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits:-

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly

within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are

recognized in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the

amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current

employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet'

Long-Term employee benefits

Compensated expenses which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of period in

which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of the

defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.

Post-employment obligations

i. Defined contribution plans

Provident Fund and employees' state insurance schemes

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is

a defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to

the plan at a predetermined rate (presently l2o/o) of the employees' basic salary. These

contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of India. In

addition, some employees of the Company are covered under the employees' state insurance

schemes, which are also defined conffibution schemes recognized and administered by the

Government of India.

The Company's contributions to both these schemes are expensed in the Statement of Profit and

Loss. The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly conffibutions.

ii. Defined benefit GratuitY Plan

The Company provides for gratuity obligations through a defined benefit retirement plan (the

'Gratuity Plan') covering all employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to

vested employees at retirement or termination of employment based on the respective employee

salary and years of employment with the Company. The Company provides for the Gratuiry Plan

based on actuarial valuations in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 19 (revised),
.'Employee Benefits". The Company makes periodic contributions to the HDFC Standard Life

lnsurance Company Ltd for the Gratuity Plan in respect of employees. The present value of
obligation under gratuiry is determined based on actuarial valuation using Project Unit Credit

Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee

benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

Defured retirement benefit plans comprising of gratuity, un-availed leave, post-retirement medical

benefits and other terminal benefits, are recognized based on the present value ofdeflured benefit

obligation which is computed using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations

being carried out at the end ofeach annual reporting period. These are accounted either as current

employee cost or included in cost of assets as permitted.
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3.13.

3.14.

iii. Other Long Term Employee Benefits

Leave Encashment

Other long term employee benefit comprises of leave encashment towards un-availed eamed
leave. These are recognized as per the actuarial valuation as per the Projected Unit Credit Method
carried out at the end ofeach annual reporting period.

Re-measurements of leave encashment towards un-availed leave are recognized in the Statement
ofprofit and loss.

iv. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in ocl as and when incurred.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance ofthe defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset
ceiling (ifapplicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest as defined above),are
recognized in other comprehensive income except those included in cost of assets as permitted
in the period in which they occur and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Financial Statements represents the actual
deficit or surplus in the Company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Share-based com pensation

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is
recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the
employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based
on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions
are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number
of awards that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifring asset are capitalized as part of cost of such asset. other borrowing costs areiecognized as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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3.15. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the

present obligation at the end ofthe reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties

surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the

present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an

inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts, unless

possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote.

3.16. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method. The cash flows from operating, investing and

financing activities of the Company are segregated.

3.17. Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average

number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by

dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving

basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been

issued upon conversion ofall dilutive potential equity shares.

3.18. lncome taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable

income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and

liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, if any.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively

enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax

returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax

authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising

betvveen the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Financial Statement.

However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset

or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the ffansaction affects

neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax

rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period

and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.
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HTL Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 3l,ZOZ1
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherrvise stated)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognized only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint
arrangements where the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint arrangements where it is not
probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.f 9, Exceptional ltems

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the statement of profit and loss from
ordinary activities, which are non-recurring and are ofsuch size, nature or incidence that their separate
disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance of the company.
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HTL Llmit.d
(All .Eountt rrc in Rt Lrkhs.)
Not.r fomitrt pril of th. Fimnci.lt Sl.l.mctrt! for lhe ycar.ndcd Mrrch 3l' 2025

409. I 5lnvBtm.nB in Equitv istum@t
Unquotcd Invstm.otl

40.91.500 409. I 5
Unquoted Equity Shee (Fully Prid up)

a$Ga! marsurcd aa

--.::' .i:,_ ltiiq:{i.i

t64.79 5?7 lE
Unlccur.d, contidc.cd Good
Fixed Deposis with Bmk (Msturiw morc than l2 monthsli

317.it

E

!t I April, 2023

lo Sutement ofprofit and los6

59 4t

t2 46

I lE

:'Piaiirty; plrnt Er.rd

EoulDhanl
(495 lE)

4t 3l

105 96

(l0Er)

Sg:::j1;
(329.14)

22.96
3.lt

A. 'r 1l Mrfth. 2024 15,12 t453.t?) 75.1 1303.60)

(ChanBed)/C.edtred
- ro SErement of profit ed loss
- ro orhet comnrehensive tncome

E 15

(3 ?0)
t3 14 479.3 t 501.20

I3.?0)
r&o-l3l .193.90

a megin

Aa it Mr* r 31r 2023 :.,i' .;:ll|irri:Maith
'Na-^fsi;E Aboul jldout

r!t.$ mcisured !l FVTOCI

Unquotcd Equity Shdes (Fullv Paid up)
r.l2.995 ll30 I,E6,000 I 8.60

rr30. :: r r" r r. tl*50_

l0

t2

. A!!a
ri{mh 1r- 2o2a

A! rt
. Mrith 31.2025l

304.t1 64t.42

1,652.16
531.8t

?,985 45
3tt.92

8,r84.57
t,22A.a9
2,5 t0.48

5t9.62
I,lo474

243.26

4,x7.37
r,800.92
I,7t6.61

152.15
941 t9
205.15

Soods

ccf,ified rnd Y.lucd by th.

stock-in-tnde Coods

Stores & Spar€s

Matcrial
Msted0l-ln tlmit

t.:';:.Ar-!t .,'
M.;li tr- t6il

r E.60Ir 30
InvBtncnls

ii!:.

7

4S-i679.37

'' A!it.'-''
'M"*h-[i::rn r
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IITL Limircd
(All rmounl! arc in Rt Lrkhr.)
Nots forming pan ofth. Fin.ncirl! Strtcment. for thc y.ar endcd Msrch ll, 2025

Trade s rt 3ld

l4 caah

t5

s
" Rs 55. l4 Likhs ( Prcvious y6 Rs.t I 09 trkhs) h6 rcsrriored us€.

l6

13.2 The credrl petiod lowrds trade recervables generally rangc between O to I 80 days Geneml payment tems tncluds proc6s hma with the respechve custome6 bctwean J0 to60 days and cenain retention money sthtn t 80 Days
l3'3 In detemining lhe rllo'mce for tradc receivsbles the company hu used practrel expedrents b6ed on financial conditron of the custome6, rgeing of thc customerreccivables and oveFdues availabrlity of collalerals and hrsrorrql expenence ol collectrons foh custohers The concenrratron of fsk with respect !o tBde recervables isrmonably low as most oflhe cuslomers arc Govemment and large Corporare organlsations though there may be nomal delays in collections.
I 3.4 Above balance of trade recervables include recoverable from related pany (Rcfer Note 4 I ).

l7

l8

23,927.98

10.0r
Disputed Tmdc Recervabls -Unseured, Considered Good
Undispuled Tradc Receiuble - Credit lmprired

Credir

-Uns6urcd,

in tha axpcatcd credil losr rlloranca oftrada reaaivablls rr€ ar folloyr:

Provided during the yer
a( thc Beginning ofthe y@r

7.63

Coosidarcd g@d
Trode Rccclveblq

Comidcr.d g@d
Credil impaircd

I0.E09.42 9,929.2A 1,550.7r 2,2t4.77 13t m
2.2t 5.42

24SX,t5
7.63

Trrdc
CoNidcrcd Sood
Crcdil

good

impaircd
Trrdc R6civeblct

8,109.02

i=]:ITB:6'

8.6S2.43

. ti52.{3

1.7m.45

. - r.7dll3

t15.90

'. - tat90

s.74

fIIi:,.lIIElf ffilIJEf:a:s

34 4l

l0 0t

F#6

23927,94

I 0.ol

-,n cufienl account
on hand,

& Crsh
wrrh banks,

14 t5
0.66

I 1.58

4.78
0.50

I,761.22
55.14

I,332.tt
El 09

U6ecur.d, Contid.rcd Eood
Security Deposits
Inter6t Receivables
Othcr Cl&ms R4ovemble

357.52
4t.06
u.22

33t.8t
61.30

Cufient Tq Assets (Net oflncofie Tax provicion)

@9!.u!!.1!9!444v4!qe ru & rpsflcs)
99.94 36.1 3

Q74 49\

lndirect Tax Rft overable
Expcnges

Incentive Recetvable
Recoverable In €sh or In k,nd

with Statutory Aulhoritres under Appcal
Revenue - Deblors

9t4.48
41213

9.16
I386
31.16
418

r5r 0l
280.31

l8 t5
2t.t6
33 36

24,636.15

741
24,64r.78

761
23,911.99

17) 17
.. I AUA
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HTL Llmitcd
(Alt rmountt uc in R! Lskhs.)
Not.t forminr plrt ofth. Finan.illt Sartem.trB for tie y.ir endcd Mrrch 3l' 2025

??
19 (r) Equity Shrr. Crpitrl

Ar !l I April, 2023

Increde during the ys
At st 3l March,2024
Increde durinB the y@
A! at 3l Much.2025

20,00,000

20,00,000

20.00.000

2,000.00

2,000.00

2.000.00

F.'..-:EE;F f]saa=i.-r.-@Edtfutlililti*::r'r' :.rll . ..:..1. Ahount

Ar .t I April' 2023

Add: Shares issued durrnS the yd
Ar !l 3l M!rch' 2024
Add Shar$ rssued during the year

A! .r 3l Mnrch.2025

15r00,000

15,00,000

r5.00.000

1,500,00

1,500.00

1,500.00

(i i i) I t , I 0,000 (previous yaF I l , I O,OOO) Equiry Shares o[ Rs I OO/- each are fu lly pard up, are held by the Holding Companv HfCL Ll h rted

morc than 5

' The Interest is held by HFCL Limited, Holding Compmy.

(vi) Termr rnd Rights .na.h.d to Equity Shxres

Thc Compmy h6 issued equity shdcs ofRs l0O/- each. Upon show ofheds every member present shall have one vote dd upon a Poll every member presfit in p66on or by proxy or by

dseB of fte Compey. anff dist.ibution of rll ptef.,enrial mouts a per Statute in proponron to lhcit shdeholdings.

'Share to grdted by thc compdy to

-Rameasurement of

71.00"/6

I

I
I

3,E9,996
26,00%

2
I

,991
7 4.00%o

I
I

I

J,t9,996
26 0070

I

% oJ Holding
Mmo.l Baidi
Baburaj Eradalh'
Tarun Kalrai
Govt oflndia represented by Prsident oflndra
% ol Holdtng
Shri Shambhu Kumtr Mehlo, DDG(PHP), DoT
Shri R M Agaml, DDO (SU), DoT.

0Y6

r,09,991

14 00yo

HFCL Limiled

Mooj Bard'

Baburaj Errdath'
Taru Kaha'

14,299.55 r5,Ell 5r
(r 5 r.90)Other Comprehensrve [ncome -Remeurement of Defined Benefil Plans

(ri) Retained EminSs

. As.!r
Mreh al- 1OZ

Arrt .-
Mitm[31.2o2t.

0.00 000

during the yer

0.00 0.00

A! !t
M'dh 3l-iairi

4! "t:.li{rEh 31. 1024 .,

t5,Et l.5t
( 1,il 1 96)

t2,954.67
2.tt6 E6Add; Ner profil / (loss) for the yq

.t5lll.3l

M6ftn Jl. ZUZI
(l s L9o)

I l.0t

- ]MN JI: IUA
(142.46)

(9.441
lncrBe dunog thc y@t

{.140i891 (151.90I

MrFh 1!:2OrS
Ar ra

Mrrch 3r. 2024
24.U 24 64Balance

during the yeu

24.A u.64

r"i} 'li'r ::' 1,,

fepresanlS amount

qh.i p.i'.w K,,hrr srivartavr Ditcctor ITPFI Do'I
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IITL Limilcd
(AIl smounlt rrc in Rs Lakhs.)
Notcs forminE pcrl ofthc Financials Statcm.nls for th€ year cnded March 31, 20rs

yar 42.2

20.2 Tem Lod of Rs 947.25 Lakhs (py tu. 3297 90 La$E) from bmks ue secured by pai- p6su chd8e b6is on:
l.) All Movcable Property Pldl md Equrpfrenl (both prGent ud futur€)
2.) Rcgistered Mongage of2 56 acres Indusrial lud pacel in Guindy, Chemru
3.) All curent 6sets ed Crh Flows (both proenl & future)
4 ) Corporate cuuMtoe of HFCL Limired (Holding Compdy) & I\d,/s MN Venrures privare Limxed
5.) Pe6onal Gudutee of the Chaime of the Comp&y
5.) Atlcemmt to Plodge of23.90ol. shechotding ofHTL Limir.d by HFCL Limired
20.3 Tem Lou of tu. 7544.02 Ljkhs (py Rs 3 t t 7.27 lakis) from NBFC is s4u.cd by pM- pssu chugc bsrs on .

l.) All Ihmovcable Assels of Plet at Hosur, Tmil Nadu
2.) Corporale Cudutee of HFCL Limiled (HoldinS CompMy) & fws MN Venrures privale Limircd.
3.) Persond Guuetee of lhe Chaime of th€ Compdy
20.4 For lems of repawent of lou from relatcd pMy, refer nqt€ 45.

23' l working capital Lom of fu 8,0E3.0I Lalhs (previous ved Rs 5.265 46 L.-kfis) from Bmk is securod agdnst the followinS on po.pssu chdge bsisl.) AU Movcable Properq Plet dd Equipment (bolh present ud fuure)
2.) Regislered Mo(gage of2 sG acres Indlsrrial lMd parcel in Cqindy, Chcnnai
I ) All cM.nl ssels md C6h Flow (bo$ present & futue)
4.) Corporate Cueulee of [{FCL Limilcd (Holding Compey) & IWs MN Ventures pnvate Limited
5 ) Pe6onal Cudutc. of the Chaima of rhe Compey
6 ) Agr@mml lo Plcdge of 23.90olo shdcholding of HTL Linited by HFCL Limired
23.2 U6eurcd vfidor bills discouling is rcpayablo on duc dats 6 ag.ced wifi the lqdoB.
23J UNeurod CBtoher bills discou[ng is repsyable on due dar€ by rhe cutomer.
23'4QudcrlyRetun shtem@bofcutmtAsllill€dbythecompmywithBuksuegme.aflyinaggremotwiththebooksof&coul.
23.5 Unssurod Borowings from orhcr pMis hgving marurity ofl6s lhu one ved.

2t

23

5,135.91

2.450.00

947.25
7,644.O2
(77s 94)

\1,6're 42) (688 08I
3,405.36

2,450.00

3,291.90
3,|7.27

(2.r2t.13\Less : Curent Malurities ofLong Term boffowings - Bank
Less Current Maruritres of Long l'erm borrowiilgs . NBFC

Sc.urcd
Tcm Lorn!.

- fiom Banks
- from NBFC

Unsccured
Loan from rclated party

Oulslsndirg rmourt
RepaymGnl Due
2025-26
2026-27
2021.28
2024-29
2029.30
2030-3 I

947.25

775.94
l71 3l

7,644 02

t.679 42
t.6t3.90
r.688.94
1.344 60

997.56
)AS AI

2,450.00

612.50
tl6 67
816.57
20{.17

Bencfits (Refcr note
Provrsions for Galuity

I 75.8r
93.49

t1474
90 5s

Arat,
. ru.i[lil-'ior'r.

.Artt..r..:: ,

Mr'r"htl.:ld;i 'Borrowings - Lotns repayablc on demnndr
Secur€d
(i) from Banks-Working Capital
(ir) Cufient Maturitres of Long tem Borowrngs

Unsacurad
(r) from banks - brll drscountrng

]fu) from other pmre
7,t49.t5

8,0t3.01
2.455.36

s,26s,46
1.009 t0

1,639.00
400 00

6

.,.:
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HTL Limitcd
(Alt amountt nr€ in R3 Lrkht.)
Notes forming prd of tlre Financirls Strlcment! for lhc yetrr endcd March 3l' 2025

.l..ii.N-i-D- . . ,trt!.t!in,1 yerr 2.3litpi&... 1 ril;feifil{tirt{rn
sr [vtsrch 31.2025

MSME t,049 09

6,t42.68

t12 9t

7.t tJ 63

24 61

42 A2

l2 5l
20 t9 5.lr

I,259,18

14,026,69

1ufr:.lrt:.n.;*- -.i..tr:i.:jir::',ri, ", 7.,$*:77 7.2E8,54 61 -19 32.70 . 5.38 jlisj83;r7

A! rt Mrrch 31,202.1

(i) MSME
(ii) O&.tr

424 89

9 -230 32

I 02.16

56t.05

t2.77

3r.45 6.65

6.92

t1 24

547.45

9,A46.72

i7;i:hl=-::ai,;i:$" ;,"];*Sia':,- r.i.l'.'r. I 1i ',-,::: 9.651rt, ,: j: t r- 66J,9i 1Jl?;2 l'' -' 6.53 .!i",$r il63i{r6:

24

25

drtails

24,2. There arc no Disputed MStvIE or Disputed others trade payable balances I on 3 I rt Mar 2025 and 3 l5t March 2024.

Asat r .' ..

. Miiiri.3i:idi5 I

Provbion! for Employcc Benefitt (Refer note 3E)

Provisions for Grltuity
Provisions for Lqve Enc6hment

24.?4
7t.74

6,EE

22.30

- .55-lD' ,9.1E

(This spoce has been intcntionall.t leJi blank)

,..,r,&,i!: ' ..
.Mrith 31.202,1 '

1,259.1E
14.026.69

541 45

9,846.72
to Mrcro and Small Enterprrss (Refer note no. 4t)

Pryeblcr -

13.285.t7 t0394,11

8.?0

23.49
394.03
441.34
t41 20
325 00

I t.62

156.6r

366 69

Othtr Financial Liabilitis
a) lnterest sccrucd

-lnterest on Tem lons
-lnteret on Working Capibl Lm

b) Credito6 for Capiul Soods
c) ExpensB Payable
d) Seurity Dcposit
.l Orh.r EmDlove* Rel.ted liebities

392.)4
99.01

47.A2

r,655.69
r 2 l.t9Li!biliti6 payable

26

.r-z ydis ' ,,. tl l,,lftliir.1,,ll.:

t -777 -SA
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28

HTL Limited
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs.)
Notes forming part ofthe Financials statements for the ycar ended March Jl,2o2s

tions

29 Other

30 of iMaterial

3l Other

32 tn of fin work-in and stock-in

Sale and Services
-Manufacturing and trading activities

Other Operating Revenues
-Scrap Sale
-Export Incentives

57 ,26t.22

143.08

55.23

84, l 25.53

230.89
72.13

Other non-operating income
Interest Income
Rent Received
Miscellaneous Income

87.01
262.85
136.88

156,17

128.60

t47.54

7,985.4s
40,952.29
4igfilq

7,652.76

9,535. I 0
s7,723.06
67,258.16

7,98s.45

Opening Balance
Add : Purchases during the year

Less: Closing Stock

Consumption ofstores and spares parts
Loose Tools written off

627.71
134,82

1,t60.02
93.1 1

Closing Stock
Finished Goods
Stock in Trade- Goods
Works in

2,510.48
st9.62

t,228,89

r,786.6 t

152.15

r,800,92
4,258.99 3,739.68

Opening
Frnished Goods
Stock in Trade- Goods
Wr

1,786.61

152.15
2,696,7 t

I36.81

3.739.68 5,795.99
. .,' -., :.. :,r':.,t-..iI5fimtr]
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HTL Limited
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs.)
Notes forming part ofthe Financials Statements for the year ended March 31,2025

338 benefits

34

35 Other

36 Shere with the Indian

tsr

6,218.17
t96.t2

7 5.31

6,505.62
r93.37

Salaries, bonus and allowances

Contribution to Provident and other funds

1,222.49
r,066.92

593.48
390.31

1,780.76
s3 l. l6
708.8 r

549.t2

Bank Loan Interest
Interest on other loans

Other lnterest
Bank Charges and loan processingcharges

18.00

5.00
4.10
0.37

t96.23
11 .46

8.'17

2t9.45
1,436 97

258.90
206.92

l,9l1.50
l9 l.s0
37.17

7.63

20.63
7.35

60.68
132.59

I19,96

t'7'7.47

15 00
4.00
3,5 5

0.32
433.2t

8.60
45.72

206.08
r,839.45

I 5 1.85

216.27
| ,670.17

224.80
9.r2

l00,55

9.43
44.37

114.79
220.64

Legal and Professional Charges

Loss on Sale ofProperty, Plant and Equipment

Communication Expenses

Travelling and Conveyance Expenses

Power and Fuel & Water Charges

Repairs and Maintenance
lnsurance Expenses

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Offrce and Ceneral Expenses

Bad debts and other balances written off(net)

Sining Fees

Fluctuation Loss (Net)

Social Responsibiltiy (Refer Note 47)

Rates and Taxes

for Expected credit losses

iquidated damages on Sales

ditors' Remuneration
Audit Fee

Tax Audit Fee

Other Services

Out of pocket expenses

2,8s6.86
2,E56.E6

1s,00,000

Rs.

r 5,00,000

100.00
190.46
r90.46

l s,00,000

(1,511.96)

l 5,00,000

100.00
(r00.E0)

(1,51
Profit & Loss for the year

Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (A)

Weighted average number ofordinary Equity shares (B)

as denominator for calculating basic EPS)

average number of ordinary Equity shares (C)

as denominator for calculating diluted EPS)

Eamings per share-Basic (e/B) (Rs)

Basic & Diluted per share

value of ordinary EquitY share (Rs)

;rilif the"VCEF;ctiiEU .'
'l'4fidflff{mi?;r'-.,

_.:: -..:- ;:: :-;i;-=5337i91.
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HTL LIMITED
(CIN: U93090TN I 960PLC004355)

ifegd.Office: GST Road, Guindy, Chennai-600 032

ijr 
-uii, 

.ooohtllimited.com; website: www.hrllimited.com

Phone: 044'22501020

64th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2025

I / We hereby record my / our presence at the 64th Annual General Meeting of the

Comoany at CST RoaO, Cuindy, ihe,rnai - 600032 / thru' Video Conferencing over MS

Tearns on Friduy,8th August, 2025 at l2'30 P'M'

TT ENDAN C E SLI

Member's Folio Member's/ Proxy's Nanle Member's / Proxy's Signature

Note

Please complete the Folio No. and narrle. sign the Attetrdance Slip apd hand over /

send it over at the Meeting Hall'
physical copy of the Annual Report for 2025 and Notice of the Annual ceneral

Meeting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy lrorm are sent in the perrnitted

rnodc to all Merrrbers.

2
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GUIDELINES TO SHAREHOLDERS WHO OPT FOR ATTENDING THE 64TH

AGM THRU' VIDEO CONFERENCING

l. As you are aware) in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic,

the general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued

by rhe Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. l412020 dated April 8,

2020, Circular No.l712020 dated April 13, 2020, Circular No. 2012020 dated May 05,

2020, Circular No. O2l2OZl dated January 13,2021, Circular No. 1912021 dated

December 08,2OZl, Circular No.2ll2O2l dated December 14,2021, Circular No'

Z1ZO22 dated May 05, 2022, General Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 28,

Z111,General Circutar No. 09/2023 dated September 25,2023 and General Circular

No.09/2024 dated September 19, 2024.The forthcoming ACM willthus be held at the

Registered Office of the Company at GST Road, Guindy, Chennai - 600 032 and thru'

Video Conferencing. Hence, Members who send their requests from their registered

email id with the Company for attending this meeting thru' Video Conferencing can

attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC over MS Teams (Thru' the

Link to be provided thru' the registered email).

Z. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 101 of the Companies Act,20l3, the Company

is sending Notice of the AGM to the address registered with the Company or with the

depository participanV depository.

3, The Members requesting to attend this meeting thru' Video Conferencing can join the

AGM in the VC mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the

commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice.

The facility of participation at the AGM through VC will be made available to the

interested Members, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Auditors etc.

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC will be counted for

the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act,20l3.

pursuant to MCA Circular No. l412020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint

proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However,

in pursuance of Section I 12 and Section I 13 of the Companies Act, 2013,

representatives of the members such as the President of lndia or body corporate can

attend the AGM through VC and cast their votes.

5
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GUIDELINES TO SHAREHOLDERS WHO OPT FOR ATTENDING THE 64TH

AGM THRU' VIDEO CONFERENCING

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. l712020 dated April
13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the
Company at www.htl Iim ited.corn.

7. The AGM has been convened through VC in compliance with applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April g, 2020
and MCA Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13,2O2O and MCA Circular No.20/2020
dated May 05,2020 and MCA circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13,2021, MCA
Circular No. l912021 dated December 08,2021, MCA Circular No. 2l/2021 dated

December 14,2021, MCA Circular No. 2/2022 dated May OS,2OZZ, General Circular
No. 1012022 dated December 28, 2022,General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September

25, 2023 and General circular No. 09/2024 dated Septe mber 19, 2024.

8. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,20l4 (as amended) and

MCA circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13,2020,May 05,2}Zo,January 13,2021,
December 08, 2021, December 14, 2ozl, May 05, zoz2, December zg,
2022,September 25, 2023 and September 19,2024 the Company is providing facility
of e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM,
details of which are as follows:-

(i) Shareholders shall be able to cast their vote on all business items mentioned in the
AGM Notice during the meeting only, on order of poll by the chairman of the

Meeting.

(ii) For this purpose, the Company is providing a designated e-mail address as follows,
the Members can convey their votes, when a poll is required to be taken during
the Meeting on any resolution, at such designated e-mail address: -

Designated E-Mail Address for
snarayanan@htllim ited.com.

casting votes by Members:-

(iii) During the Meeting held through vc facility, where a poll on any item is
required, the Members shall cast their vote on the resolutions only by sending e-
mails through e-mail addresses, which are registered with the Company. The said
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GUIDELINES TO SHAREHOLDERS WHO OPT FOR ATTENDING THE 64TH

AGM THRU' VIDEO CONFERENCING

e-mails shall only be sent to the designated e-mail address circulated by the

Company.

For any query/ grievance related to attending AGM through VC/OAVM or e-voting,
please contact the following person:-

Company: HTL Limited
Name: S. Narayanan
E-mail: snarayanan@htllim ited.com
Telephone/Mobile No. 7010456750

****r.rt*
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HTL LIMITED
(ClN: U93090TN 1 960PLC0043 5 5)

Regd. Office: GST Road, Guindy, Chennai- 600032 (Tamil Nadu)

Email: coo@htllimited.com; Website: www.htllimited.com

Phone: 044-22501020

rPursuant to S ection 

l,Hf[*::ffi ffi i"ffi*::i il[llt,';t " 
or the c ompan ie s

Name of the Member (s)

Registered Address

E-mail Id

Client-Id
ID

I / We being the member(s) holding ...

appoint:

(l) Name:

shares of HTL Ltd., of Rs.l00/- each hereby

E-Mail ld Signature or failing him

(2) Name: Address:

E-Mail Id Signature or failing him:

(3) Name: . Address: .

E-Mail Id ... Signature ...

And whose signature(s) are appended in Proxy Form as my / our proxy to attend and vote

(on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 64th Annual General Meeting of the

Company, to be held on Friday, 86 August, 2025 at 12.30 P.M. at GST Road, Guindy,

Chennai - 600 032 (Tamil Nadu) / thru' Video Conferencing over MS Teams and at any

adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below;

*+[ wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the Box below:

Address

Resolution
No.

Resolutions Optional
For Against

Ordinary Business
I To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial

Statements of the Company for the year ended

3l't March, 2025 together with the Reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

FRoxY FoN
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2 To appoint a Director in place of Shri Mahendra
Nahata (holding DIN- 00052898) who retires by
rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being

ible offers himself for
J To appoint a Director in place of

Shri K. C. Jani (holding DIN- 02535299) who retires
by rotation at this Annual
eligible offers himself for

General Meeting and being
re-appointment.

4 To re-appoi nt M/s. Oswal Sunil & Co, Chartered
Accountants (Finn Regn. No.016520N), Chartered
Accountants as S tatutory Aud itors of the Company
for a second term of five

s Business
5 To consider re-appointment and payment of

remuneration of Shri G. S. Naidu, Chief Operating
Officer as 'Manager' of the Company for a period oi
one year w.e.f. 25.6.2024 under the Conrpanies Act,
2013.

6. To consider and ratifu the remuneration payable to the
Cost Auditors for the FY 2024-25.

7 To consider and approve the appointment of
Smt. Bela Banerjee (DIN: 07047271) as an
Independent Director of the Company for the first
term of 5 consecutive years w.e.f. 10.06. 2025.

Signed this ......... day of ....

Signature of Shareholder

Signature of Proxy Holder(s) .......

2025

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Notes:

(l) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 (ForE Eight)
hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

(2) A Proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

(3) A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding
an aggregate of not more than 10%o of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights. A member holding more than l0% of the total share capital
of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and
such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.



g?

x*(4) This is only optional. Please put an 'X' in the appropriate column against the

Resolution indicated inthe Box. If you leave the'For'or'Against'column blank

against any or all the Resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the

manner as he/she thinks appropriate.

(5) Appointing a Proxy does not prevent a Member from attending the Meeting in

person if he so wishes.

(6) 
"Please 

complete all detaits including details of member(s) in above box before

submission.

,ft *,1. * X


